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CHAIRMANS STATEMENT

FAR EAST PHARMACEUTICAL TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED

To the shareholders

On 23 August 2000, Far East Pharmaceutical Technology Company Limited (the "Company”)
successfully listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange™). This is the
first milestone for the Company not only raised fund for the future expansion, but also helped
enhance the reputation and investor confidence of Company as well.

2002 is a year of decisive expansions and acquisition to which the Company and its subsidiaries
(the "Group") targeted to further broaden the product variety by seeking for tfremendous
opportunities for the growth of the Group. The Company will continue 1o apply resources and
funds for the maximization of the wealth of its shareholders.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Group’s turnover for the Year was HK$715,717,000 (2001: HK$409,633,000). This represented an
increase of 74.7% as compared with the corresponding year of 2001. The net profit from ordinary
activities attributable to shareholders for the Year amounted to approximately HKS$134,739,000
and was increased by 42.5% to that of last year. Basic earnings per share for the Year was
approximately HK33.5 cents (2001: HK30.0 cents).

The increase in turnover was mainly attributable o the increase in sales generated from the
Chinese patent medicines and Anti-hypotensive drugs, and diversification of products.

DIVIDENDS

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK4.5 cents per share for the Year
(2001: HK4 cents per share), payable to the shareholders of the Company whose names appear
on the Register of Members of the Company on 18 December 2002,

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM [SSUE OF SHARES

On 23 August 2000, the Company has issued a tofal of 80,000,000 new shares at an issue price of
HKS$1.00 each pursuant to the New lIssue and Placing (cs defined in the Prospectus dated 11
August 2000). The net proceeds therefrom after deducting expenses, were amounted to
approximately HKS67 million. As at 30 June 2002, a substantial part of the nef proceeds had been
utilized in line with the terms stipulated in the Company’s Prospectus, as follows:

. HKS13 million for the establishment of the new production plant in the PRC;

. HKS$17 million for the purchase and installation of related production equipment and
facilities in the new production plant in the PRC;

. HKS$1.5 million for research and development of new pharmaceutical formulae and
improvement of the Group's existing production technology. production rate and product
quality. and

. HKS13 million for expanding the distribution and sales network of the Group.
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To the extent that the proceeds from listing are not applied, they are currently piaced at bank as
short term deposits.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Anti-viral drugs

Sales of anti-viral drugs during the Year were approximately HKS$227,412,000, accounting for 31.8%
of the total turnover of the Group and representing approximately 9.2% increase when
compared with last year. The increase was due to the increase demand of the Jin Gang Cold
which has an excellent therapeutic effect fo the treatment of common cold, cough and
influenza and due fo the banning sales of 16 types of drugs with Phenylpropanolamine (PPA)
which are principally used for the treatment of common cold, cough and influenza. On 16
November 2000, the State Pharmaceutical Supervision and Administration of China has
announced to ban sales of 16 types of drugs with PPA. Some major competitors’ products have
been banned in the above-mentioned announcement. As a result, the Board believes the Group
has grabbled a golden opportunity to expand its market share in the anti-viral drugs such as Jin
Gang Cold, which is PPA-free.

Anti-hypotensive drugs

During the Year, the Group has launched one of the new products, "E FEERBE ", the sales of
which was approximately HK$84,769,000, accounting for 11.8% of the total turnover of the Group.
“ERBREBE will become one of the major products of the Group in the future.

Chinese patent medicines

Turnover of Chinese patent medicines increased from last year’s HK$24,590,000 to approximately
HKS$113,320,000 for the current year. The sale of Chinese patent medicines achieved encouraging
growth due to the effort of effective marketing strategy and market penetration through the
Group’s well-established relationship with its wholesalers and distributors.

Sales Network

The Group’s Ta Shan (#E L) products are marketed and distributed across 29 provinces,
autonomous regions and cities. With the well developed and effective marketing strategies, the
Group distributes its products to the wholesalers and distributors, who have established excellent
relationship with the Group, which in turn distribute the Group’s products to other dealers,
retailers and end users including hospitals, clinics and drug stores.

Apart from making great efforts on providing high quality products and establishing a
comprehensive sales neftwork, the distribution team also visits pharmaceutical wholesalers and
distributors on a regular basis for the purpose of market research and collecting feedback on its
products. The Group will continue to promote ifs products through various media, such as
television advertisement, vehicle advertisements and banners so as to enhance the market
awareness of its product under the Ta Shan (#1l1) brand.

FAR EAST PHARMACEUTICAL TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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FAR EAST PHARMACEUTICAL TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED

GMP Standard

The Group’s new production plant will meet the requirement of the Good Manufacturing
Practices ("GMP"). Construction works of the Group’s new production plant in Fujian province,
PRC has been completed. According fo the State Pharmaceutical Supervision and
Administration of the PRC, the pharmaceutical manufacturers should obtain a GMP compliance
cerfificate within the specified deadline.

PROSPECTS

The year 2002 is the first year affer the accession of China into the World Trade Organization,
which marked an excellent development opportunity with beth challenges and copportunities for
the pharmaceutical industry in the PRC. With the sfeady growth of its economy, the ongoing
reform of its public health system, the PRC will provide a golden opportunity for the domestic
pharmaceutical producers. As the PRC Government requires all domestic pharmaceutical
producers to obtain GMP certificates before June 2004, which would mean o heavy financial
burden to many State-owned enterprises and small scale pharmaceutical factories. However, it
will accelerate the integration of the presently scattered PRC pharmaceutical production
industry and will create and provide a golden opportunity for enterprises with sound financial
and operational upstanding’ horizontal expansion of business. The Group will strive to capitalize
on these favourable trends and to acguire and merge with pharmaceutical enterprises and to
develop hi-tech Chinese medicines and biotechnology drugs, in order to enhance its
competitiveness in both domestic and overseas markefts.

In the past, the Group focused its efforts on the construction of a modern plant of 20,000 square
metres. Meanwhile, the successful acquisition of Minging Factory has brought the Group the right
fo manufacture more than 70 medical pharmaceufical products and the sales channels
previocusly owned by Minging Factory. The research and development project with its primary
interests in genetic engineering has been set up in Shanghai, and will scon start operation. New
biotechnology drugs are expected to deliver and infroduce to the market shortly afterwards. This
year, the Group’s formal anabasis into the biotechnology drugs area was marked by the
acquisition of the technological know-how and patents of two products namely, Finasteride (FEAL
HERAE) and Finasteride Tablet (FEFHRZ F Bl) from Fuzhou Jiudu Medical Technology
Development Company Limited (8 /1 L& 8 R 1iTA 7)) and the acguisition of and merger with
Xiamen Talent Biotech, a company engages the development and production of Cancer genes
diagnosis testers. Sales of three key products, namely, Jin Gang Cold, "E AR EBE " and “"BilitX
B E " were satisfactory. Therefore, the Group will continue ifs efforts in developing such business
and will, when the opportunity arises, continue to acquire medicine production, sales and
bioctechnology drugs enterprises in order to further penetrate the huge pharmaceutical market in
the PRC.
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The Group is fully confident of its future and will put particular emphasis on the absorption of hi-
tech research projects and professionals, with the aim of launching new products each and
every year affer 2002 and maintaining excellent development prospects for the Group. The
Group will make great efforts in establishing its sales network by both reinforcing its market share
in the local market and stretching its reach in overseas markets. Meanwhile, the Group will step
up its efforts in enhancing its operating efficiency, making good use of the existing modern plants
and advanced equipment in increasing the production volume and efficiency, reducing costs
and improving returns. In addition, the Group will expand its production capacity and increase its
capital investment to take advantage of the PRC’s policy on developing the pharmaceutical
industry in recent years. Besides, the Group will also strengthen its efforts in acquiring other
pharmaceutical companies with quality assets and an impressive category of registered medical
products, so as to expand its operation and enhance its cost effectiveness. It is the Group’s
ultimate goal to develop into one of the first-rate leading companies in the PRC in the shortest
span of fime.

Looking ahead, the Group is fully confident of the prospects for its operation in the PRC
pharmaceutical market. It will continue to push forward with the Group’s high-quality medical
products in the existing sales network, and will step up its efforts in exploring new drugs vio
biotechnology.

APPRECIATION

I would like 1o take this opportunity 1o express my appreciation to the members of the board of
the directors for their leadership and to all the staff members for their commitment. In particular, |
would like to express my sincere thanks for the continuous support of the shareholders fowards
the Company, especially during the recent weak market. We rely on the support of our
shareholders to pursue our growth and development strategy and to assure you of the Group'’s
determination fo sfrive its best to achieve greater success in the future and add value for our
shareholders.

Cai Chong Zhen
Chafrman

Hong Kong, 21 October 2002

FAR EAST PHARMACEUTICAL TECHNOQLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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FAR EAST PHARMACEUTICAL TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED

LI@UIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During the Year, the Group’s primary sources of funding were provided by operating activities,
cash proceeds from the New Issue and Placing (as defined in the Company’s prospectus dated
11 August 2000) and cash proceeds from the aforementioned placing of 20,000,000 and
60,000,000 shares of the Company and the issuance of US$12,000,000 convertible bonds to CSFB.
As at 30 June 2002, the Group had cash and bank balances of a total amount of HK$465,483,000
(2001: HKS$117,559,000). At 30 June 2002, the Group had total assets of HK$835,618,000 (2001:
HK$346,613,000), current liabilities of HK$134,729,000 (2001: HK$56,185,000) and shareholders’
equity of HK$695,857,000 (2001: HK$289,229,000). The Group has consistently maintained a strong
working capital during the Year, with net current assets of HK$556,101,000 at 30 June 2002 (2001:
HK$166.870,000) and with a current ratio of 5.1 times af 30 June 2002 (2001: 4.0 times).

As at 30 June 2002, the Group had no outstanding borrowings (2001; Nil).

On 8 May 2002, the Company placed 60,000,000 shares at a price of HKS2.45 per share. The net
proceeds of the placing of 60,000,000 shares of the Company affer deducting expenses,
amounted to approximately HK$141,000,000 and at present such amount is used (i) as to
HK$30,000,000 to finance the acquisition of Boomtown Ventures Limited ("BVL"). BVL wholly
owned EffE/mEYWIRAR DA (Xiamen Talent Biotech Co. Ltd., "Xiamen Talent Biotech”). The
Company and the existing shareholders of BVL had entered into a formal sales and purchase
agreement whereby the Company agreed to acquire the entire issued share capital in BVL at a
consideration of HK$3(,000,000 on 15 July 2002, (i) as to approximately HK$20,000,000 to finance
the related re-engineering works of Xiamen Talent Biotech, (iii) as to approximately HK$20,000,000
fo finance fthe research and development projects of Xiamen Talent Biotech, (iv) as fo
approximately HK$10,000,000 as marketing expenses of the Group and (v) as to the balance as
the general working capital of the Group.

During the Year, Credit Suisse First Boston (Hong Kong) Limited ("CSFB”) subscribed for Bonds with
an aggregate principal amount of US$12,000,000 and proceeds of approximately HK$93,600,000,
before issued expenses, were received by the Company. As disclosed in the Company’s
announcements dated 14 August 2001, 14 December 2001 and 10 January 2002, the proceeds
will be used for capital expenditure in relation to the expansion of production and
manufacturing facilities, research and development, expansion of sales and distribution network,
acgquisition and merging new projects and general working capital purposes.

The Board believes that the Group had sufficient liquidity to satisfy its commitments and working
capital requirements. ’

As the operations of the Group are mainly denominated in Renminbi, and Hong Kong Dollars. In
view of the stable exchange rate between the two currencies, the Group considers that its
foreign exchange risk is minimal.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 30 June 2002, the Group did not have contingent liabilities (2001: Nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

As at 30 June 2002, the Group did not have any capital commitment (2001 HK$12,339,000).
BUSINESS SEGMENTS

Anti-viral drugs

FAR EAST PHARMACEUTICAL TECHNGLOGY COMPANY UMITED

Sales of anti-viral drugs during the Year were approximately HK$227,412,000, accounting for 31.8%
of the total turnover of the Group and representing approximately 9.2% increase when
compared with last year. The increase was due to the increase demand of the Jin Gang Cold
which has an excellent therapeutic effect to the treatment of common cold, cough and
influenza and due to the banning sales of 16 fypes of drugs with Phenvyipropanolamine (PPA)
which are principally used for the freatment of common cold, cough and influenza. As a result,
the Board believes the Group has grabbled a golden opportunity o expand its market share in o
the anfi-viral drugs such as Jin Gang Cold, which is PPA-free. -

Anti-hypotensive drugs

During the Year, the Group has launched one of the new products "EFBRERBE ", the sdles of
which was approximately HK$84,769,000, accounting for 11.8% of the fotal turnover of the Group.
The Group believes that "E F R EB & “will become one of the major products of the Group in the
future.

Chinese patent medicines

Turnover of Chinese patent medicines increased from last year’s HK$24,590,000 to approximately
HK$113,320,000 for the current year. The sale of Chinese patent medicines achieved encouraging
growth due to the effort of effective marketing strategy and market penetration through the
Group’s well-established relationship with its wholesalers and distributors.

Antibiotics

Scles of antibiotics showed approximately 10.5% increase when compared with the last year. The
slight increase was due to the tense competition from other competitors. But the Group will put
effort in re-engineering the production process to raise cost efficiency and enhance the

competitiveness of the products.

Analgesics

The sales of analgesics increased from approximately HK$29,009,000 in last year to HKS40,741,000
for the Year, representing approximately 40.4% increase. This was attributable to the recognitfion
of the Group’s Ta Shan brand products.
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FAR EAST PHARMACEUTICAL TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED

Chinese tonic liquor

During the Year, the sales of Chinese tonic liguor increased from approximately HK$26,174,000 to
HK$29,591,000, representing approximatiely 13.1% increase when compared with last year. This
was atfributable to the recognition of the Group’s Ta Shan brand products.

Due to the increase in turnover and the results of economies of scale, the overall gross profit
margin had improved. The overail gross profit margin was 38.0%, representing an increase of 0.1%
as compared with last year.

Administrative expenses amounted to HKS$28,438,000 (2001: HKS15,656,000) which was
comparable to last year's level at 4.0% of turnover. Selling and disfribution expenses had
increased from last year's HK$32,456,000 to the current year's HKS$71,150,000, due to the hiring of
additional salesmen and related expenses, which accounted for 9.9% of the Group’s furnover.

Finance cost amounted to HK$520,000 was incurred during the Year (2001: HKS$236,000).
FUTURE PROSPECTS
Over the Counter (“the OTC”) drugs market sales

Since urbam medical and hygiene system reform in the PRC started in 1999, employees’ medical
expenditure of state bureaus, tate-owned enferprises, have been no longer fully covered by the
PRC government. The Group believes that when patient catch a common cold or cough, they
will prefer to purchase OTC medicine instead of visiting a doctor to avoid paying expensive
medical bills. As a result, the medical OTC market in the PRC will have a strong growth. Since most
of the Group’s products are OTC drugs, the Board believes that the turnover of the Group will
also grow gradudally.

Product variety

The Group will continue to put great emphasis on research and development fo improve the
quality of the existing products.

It is the Group's plan to accelerate the development of its new products, and will continue to
further broaden the product variety by seeking for horizontal expansions by way of acquisition of
other pharmaceutical companies in the PRC.

Xiamen Talent Biotech originated from the Cancer Research Cenfre of Xiamen University. It
furned to develop its research results for market release since 1994, The two technical platforms
for Cancer analysing and alarm developed by it, namely, Enzyme Linked Immunosorbent Assay
(ELISA)Y and Polymerase Chain Reaction (PCR) would be the major product projects of the Group.
The Directors continue to have optimistic view of its prospects for the coming years.

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

At 30 June 2002, none of the Group's assets was pledged as security for liability,
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY
At 30 June 2002, the Group had 1,200 employees in Hong Kong and the PRC.

The remuneration policy and package of the Group's employees are reviewed and approved by
the Board on ¢ periodical basis. Besides provident funds and double pay, discretionary bonuses
and share options may be rewarded to employees based on individual performance as
recognition of and reward for their contribution.

Under the Company’s existing share option scheme, options to subscribe for shares of the
Company can be granted to full-time employees (including executive directors) of the Company
and its subsidiaries. For the period up to the date of this report, 65,710,000 share options have
been granted, of which 52,000,000 share options remained unexercised as at the date of this
report.

FAR EAST PHARMACEUTICAL TECHNOLOGY COMPANY UMITED
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FAR EAST PHARMACEUTICAL TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Cai Chong Zhen, aged 45, is an executive director and the Chairman of the Company. Mr. Cai
is jointly responsible with Mr. Chen for the strategic planning. corporafte policy, overall
management and marketing aspects of the Group. Mr. Cai worked in the Fujian government
institution and was responsible for supervising and monitoring the management of all industry
enterprises located in Fujian Province, the PRC from 1984 to 1991, He was also the chief editor of
a magazine on the subject of enterprise management during the same pericd. Mr. Cai
graduated from @ K2 (Fuzhou University) with a bachelor’s degree in Enterprise Management,
He has more than 16 years of experience in enterprise management.

Mr. Chen Ching Ken, aged 82, a relative of Mr. Cai Cong Yi and Mr. Cai Chong Zhen, is the founder
of the Group and an executive director and the vice-chairman of the Company. Mr. Chen is
responsible for the overall corporate policy and development strategy as well as overseeing the
Group’s cperation and management. Mr. Chen has more than 50 years of experience in
enferprise management and finance management.

Mr. Cai Cong Yi, aged 50, a brother of Mr. Cai Chong Zhen is an executive director of the
Company. Mr. Cai joined the Group in 1996 and is responsible for controlling the quality of the
Group’s products. He is also responsible for the daily operation of the Group’s business and
ensuring compliance with applicable regulations on product gualities. Mr. Cai holds a bachelor’s
degree in Medicine from £E BRI X& (Fujian Medicine University) and has been engaged in
medical research for more than 12 years.

Mr. Wong Sui Kwong, aged 54, is an executive director of the Company and is responsible for the
Group’s general administration. Mr. Wong has more than 17 years of experience in the
manufacture and sale of pharmaceutical products in the PRC.

Independent non-executive Directors

Ms. Hu Ling Po, aged 47, is a consultant of BEEMNEREMM EHET (Fujian Min Zhong Law Firm). Ms.
Hu has mcre than eight years of professional experience in PRC law.

Mr. Yu Er Feng, aged 37, is the finance manager of 8 E £ {5 E B 2 8 (Fujian CFC Industries Co.,
Ltd.), a listed company in the PRC. Mr. Yu holds ¢ bachelor's degree in Economics from & P9 K2
(the University of Xiamen).
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lin Li Yi, aged 53, is the deputy manager of the Group and is responsible for the sales and
marketing of the Group’s products. Before joining the Group in 1996, Mr. Lin concentrated on
research on economic management, Mr, Lin has published various articles in local and overseas
magazines and is the author of six books, including. (32 R 8 E ZH]) (Principles and Cases on
Marketing), (7 B #5 #8548 7% & 12 £2) (Management of the Economics in the Countryside and Towns of
the PRC) and GERIT 5 — B EZHE) (Into the Market — Enterprise Marketing Strategies). He
was awarded EEELE REESFSRHE =S (the second runner-up in social science in Fujian
Province). During 1992 and 1995, Mr. Lin was selected to join a study trip to Australic and
Switzerland.

Mr. Cheng Jin Li, aged 39, is the Group’s chief engineer and joined the Group in 1996. Mr. Cheng
is responsible for the manufacture and research and development of the Group’s products. Mr.
Cheng holds a bachelor’s degree in Medicine from B2 B8R X2 (Fujian Medicine University),

Mr. Wang Fu Tai, aged 54, is the research and development manager of the Group and joined the
Group in 1996. Mr. Wang is responsible for the research and development of the Group’s
products. Mr. Wang holds a bachelor’'s degree in Medicine from E# 2R K2 (Fujian Medicine
University). Before joining the Group. Mr. Wang had been engaged in academic and research
works in his alma mater for more than 156 years.

Mr. Chen Jin Ping, aged 45, is the administration manager of the Group and joined the Group in
1996. Mr. Chen is responsible for the administration and public relations of the Group. Mr. Chen
graduated from &M A E (Fuzhou University) majoring in Enterprise Management,

Mr. Zeng Guang Lan, aged 40, is the financial manager of the Group and jeined the Group in July
2000. Mr. Zeng is responsibie for the Group’s financial and accounting matters. Mr. Zeng holds a
title of accountant in the PRC which is recognized by the Ministry of Finance. Before joining the
Group. Mr. Zeng was the financial manager of a foreign joint venture food manufacturing
enterprises in the PRC. Mr. Zeng has more than 20 years of experience in finance and accounting.

Mr. Wu Ming Hua, aged 66, is the human resources manager of the Group and joined the Group
in 1996, Mr. Wu is responsible for the Group’s recruitment and management support. Mr. Wu
graduated from B4 AEBLER (Fujian Ren Shi Gan Bo Xue Jiao). He has more than 30 years
of experience in personnel management,

Madam Li Yue Hua, aged 48, is the quality control manager of the Group and joined the Group in
1996. Madam Li graduated from the School of Chinese Medicine of BE® B 28 (Fujion Chinese
Medicine College). She has more than 10 years of experience in production technology and
quality control of pharmaceuticals.

FAR EAST PHARMACEUTICAL TECHNOLOGY COMPANY UMITED
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The directors herein present their report and the audited financial statements of the Company
and the Group for the year ended 30 June 2002.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Defails of the principal activities of
the subsidiaries are set cut in note 16 to the financial statements. There were no changes in the
nature of the subsidiaries’ principal activities during the year,

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 30 June 2002 and the state of affairs of the Company and
the Group at that date are set out in the accompanying financial statements on pages 25 fo 69.

The directors recommend the payment of o final dividend of HK4.5 cents per ordinary share in
respect of the year to the shareholders on the register of members on 18 December 2002. This
recommendation has been incorporated in the financial statements,

SUMMARY FINANCIAL [INFORMATION

The following is a summary of the published consolidated/combined results of the Group for the
last five years and assets and liabilities of the Group for the 1ast four years.

Results
Year ended 30 June

2002 2001 2000 1996 1998

HK$’000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000

Turnover 715,717 409,633 353,116 204,027 107,315

Profit before tax 174,957 108,729 92,969 51,433 22,408

Tax (36,395) (14,321) (11,308) (4.000) —
Profit before minority

interests - 138,562 94,408 81,661 47,433 22,408

Minority interests (3,823) 133 — — —

Net profit from ordinary
acftivities atftributable
to shareholders 134,739 94,541 81,661 47,433 22,408
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:
Assets and liabilities z
As at 30 June §
2002 2001 2000 1999 S
HK$°000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 ‘99
Non-current assets 144,788 123,558 25,229 11,424 o
S
Current assets 690,830 223,055 123,682 118,120 %
<
Total assets 835,618 346,613 148,911 129,544 ;%L
2
Current liabilities (134,729) (56,185) (560,990) (74,561) %
Minority interests (5,032) (1.199) — —
Net assets 695,857 289,229 97.921 54,983
Notes:
1. The assets and liabilities of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2001 have been restated to reflect
the changes in accounting policy of the Group on the treatment of dividends proposed after the
balance sheet date following the adoption of SSAP 9 (revised) as setf out in note 2.
2. The summary of the combined results for each of the fwo years ended 30 June 1999 has been
extracted from the Company’s prospectus dated 11 August 2000, The results of the Group for each of
the two years ended 30 June 2002 are those set out on page 25 of the financial statements. The
summary of the combined results of the Group for the three years ended 30 June 2000 includes the
results of the Company and its subsidiaries as if the current structure of the Group had been in
existence throughouf these financial years and is presenfed on the basis set out in note 2 fo the
financial statements.
3. As at the date of this report, the only published consolidated/combined balance sheets of the Group

that have been prepared to date are as at 30 June 1999, 2000, 2001 and 2002. The combined balance
sneets of the Group as at 30 June 1999 and 2000 are exfracted from the published pro forma financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2000 and were prepared on the basis as if the
Group had been in existence as atr 30 June 1999 and 2000.

FIXED ASSETS

Detfgils of the movements in the fixed assets of the Group are set out in note 12 to the financial
statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 16 to the financial statements.
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JOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITY

Particulars of the Company’s inferest in a jointly-controlled entity are set out in note 15 to the
financial statements.

SHARE CAPRITAL, SHARE OPTIONS AND WARRANTS

Details of the movements in the Company's share cagpital, share options and warrants during the
year together with the reasons therefor, are set out in note 22 fo the financial statements.

REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Details of the Company’s redeemable convertible bonds are set out in note 21 to the financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during the year are set
out in note 23 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 30 June 2002, the Company had distributable reserves of approximately HK$454,011,000.
Under the Company’s memorandum and articles of association and the Companies Law (2001
Revision) of the Cayman lslands, the capital reserve and share premium of the Company of
HKS$104,915,000 and HK$323,588,000, respectively, at 30 June 2002 are distributable to the
shareholders of the Company provided that immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed fo be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as
they foll due in the ordinary course of business.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Approximately 12% of the Group's total furnover for the year was attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers. Turnover from the Group’s largest customer accounted for approximately 4%
of the Group’s turnover for the year,

In addition, approximately 76% of the Group’s total purchases for the year was attributable to the
Group’s five largest suppliers. Purchases from the Group’s largest supplier accounted for
approximately 23% of the Group’s purchases for the year.

As far as the directors are aware, other than Mr, Chen Ching Ken, an executive director of the
Company. who is the sole shareholder of @MNEEEIRIBR A, one of the Group’s top five
suppliers for the year ended 30 June 2002, none of the directors, their associates, and those
shareholders who to the knowledge of the directors owned more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers and/or
suppliers mentioned in the preceding paragraphs.

Details of the transactions with #EMEBEEIRIBER L8 are set out in note 25 to the financial
statements.
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DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year were as follows:
Executive directors:

Mr. Cai Chong Zhen

Mr. Cai Cong Vi

Mr. Chen Ching Ken

Mr. Wong Sui Kwong

Mr. Chen Wei (Appointed on 1 June 2002)
Mr, Luk Wai Hong (Resigned on 1 June 2002)

Independent non-executive directors:

Ms. Hu Ling Po
Mr. Yu Er Feng

In accordance with articles 86 and 87 of the Company’s articles of association, Mr. Chen Ching
Ken and Mr. Chen Wei will retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

The directors of the Company, including the independent non-executive directors, but excluding
the chairman Mr, Cai Chong Zhen, are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with the provisions of the Company's
articles of association.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical defails of the directors of the Company and the senior management of the Group
are set out on pages 12 to 13 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive directors has entered into a service contract with the Company for a term
of three years (except for Mr. Luk has resigned and Mr. Wong Sui Kwong where their respective
service confracts have a term of two years) commencing on 1 August 2000, and which may be
terminated by either party thereto by giving to the other six months’ prior notice in writing and
which notice period shall not expire at any time during the first year.

Apart from the foregoing, no director propaosed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the Company

within one year without payment other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS® INTERESTS [N CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 25 to the financial statements, no ‘director had a significant beneficial
interest, either direct or indirect, in any contract of significance to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

FAR EAST PHARMACEUTICAL TECHNOLOGY COMPANY UMITED ‘l
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DIRECTORS® AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS’ REMUNERATION

Details of the remuneration of the directors of the Company and of the five highest paid
individuals of the Group during the year ended 30 June 2002 are set out in note 6 to the financial
statements.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

Details of the retirement scheme and the related contributions of the Group for the year are set
out in notes 2 and 5 to the financial statements, respectively.

DIRECTORS® INTERESTS [N SHARE CARITAL AND WARRANTS

As at 30 June 2002, the interests of the directors and their associates in the securities of the
Company and its associated corporations as recorded in the register (the “Register”) that was
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 29 of the Securities (Disclosure of Interests)
Ordinance (the "SDI Ordinance”) or notified to the Company, pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies, were as set out below:

Number of shares Number of warrants

of the Company of the Company

Name Type of interest interested interested
Mr. Cai Chong Zhen Other (Note) 255,800,000 49,960,000
Mr. Chen Ching Ken Other (Note) -~ . . 255,800,000 49,960,000

Note: These shares and warrants are held by Grecat Wall Investment Group Limited as the trustee of The
Great Wall Unif Trust, a unit trust of which all of the unifs in issue are owned by Ansbacher (BVI) Limited
in its capacity as the trustee of The C&C Trust, a discretionary family trust of which the objects include
Mr, Cai Chong Zhen and his spouse and the family members of Mr. Chen Ching Ken.

In addition, Mr. Cai Cong Yi is holding a share in a subsidiary of the Company, in a non-beneficial
capacity which is solely for the purpose of complying with minimum company membership
requirements.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors, chief executives or their associates, had any
personal, family, corporate or other beneficial interests in the issued share capital of the
Company or any of its associated corporations which was recorded in the Register, as defined in
the SDI Ordinance.

DIRECTORS® RIGKHTS TO ACRUIRE SHARES

Apart from as disclosed under the heading “Share options” below at no time during the year
were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of securities of the Company granted
to any director or their respective spouse or children under 18 vears of age, or were any such
rights exercised by them, or was the Company or any of ifs subsidiaries a parfty to any
arrangement to enable the Company’s directors, their respective spouse, or children under 18
years of age to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate.
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SHARE OPTIONS

Pursuant to a share opfion scheme adopted by the Company on 26 July 2000 (the "Original
Share Option Scheme”), the board of directors may on or before 25 July 2010, at its discretion
invite any full-time emplioyees, including executive directors, of the Company or any of ifs
subsidiaries, to fake up options to subscribe for ordinary shares of HKS0.10 each in the Company
(the "Shares”). The subscription price will not be less than the higher of (i) 80% of the average of
the official closing prices of the Shares on the Stock Exchange for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of the grant of the option and (i) the nominal value of the
Shares,

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which options may be granted under the Original
Share Option Scheme may not exceed, in nominal amount, 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time excluding the aggregate number of Shares which have been dully
allotted and issued pursuant to the Original Share Option Scheme. The maximum number of
Shares in respect of which options may be granted to any one employee or director may not
exceed 25% of the aggregate number of Shares in respect of which options are issued and
issuable under the Original Share Opfion Scheme.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 30 days from the date of the offer,
upon payment of a nominal consideration of HKS$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of
the share options commences from the date of acceptance of the offer of the share options and
ends on a date which is not later than 10 years from the date of the offer of the share options.

Details of the movements in the number of cutstanding share options of the Original Share
Option Scheme of the Company during the year are summarised as follows:

*Price of
Compaony’s shares
Exercise Granted  Exercised At grant At exercise
Neme of category Exercise price Balance at during during Balance aof date of date of
of participant Date of grant period  per share 17712001 the year  the year 30/6/2002 options options
HKS HKS HKS
Directors
Mr Cai Cong Vi 19/1/2001 19/1/2001 0652 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 0.825 N/A
to 18/1/2011
271312001 27{3/2001 0.7696 7,500,000 - - 7,500,000 0.990 N/A
fo 26/3/2011
Mr Cai Chong Zhen 19/1/2001 19/1/2000 0652 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000 0828 N/A
fo 18/1/2011
27/3/2001 27/3/2001 0769 5,500,000 - - 5,500,000 0.990 N/A
to 26/3/2011
Mr Wong Sui Kwang 2713{2001 27/3/2000 0.769 8,000,000 - - 8,000,000 0990 NIA
fo 26/3/2011 '

25,000,000 - - 25000000

FAR EAST PHARMACEUTICAL TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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SHARE OPRTIONS (Continued)

On 23 August 2001, the Stock Exchange has announced cmendments to Chapter 17 of the Listing
Rules in respect of share option schemes, which has come into effect on 1 September 2001. In
compliance with the amendmenfts fo the Listing Rules and the announcement of the Stock
Exchange, the directors consider that it Is in the inferest of the Company to terminate the
Criginal Share Option Scheme and to adopt a new share option scheme (the "New Share Option
Scheme”). An ordinary resolution was passed at the Company’s annual general meeting held on
29 November 2001 for the approval of the New Share Opfion Scheme and fermination of the
Original Share Option Scheme,

The purpose of the New Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives or rewards to parficipants
thereunder for their contribution to the Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit and retain
high calibre employees and atftract human resources that are valuable to the Group and any
invested entity in which the Group holds any equity interest,

Pursuant to the New Share Option Scheme, the board of directors may, at its discretion invite any
eligible employees (Including executive directors), any non-executive directors, shareholders,
suppliers and customers of the Group and any other parties having contributed or may
contribute to the development of the Group to take up options to subscribe for Shares. The
subscription price shall be a price determined by the directors, but shall not be less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares on the date of the offer; (i) the average closing
price of the Shares for the five frading days immediately preceding the date of the offer; and (iii)
the nominal value of a Share.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the New Share Option Scheme must not exceed 30% of
the total issued share capital of the Company from time to time. The tofal number of Shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the New Share Option
Scheme shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue as at 29 April
2002. At 30 June 2002, the number of shares issuable under share options granted under the New
Share Option Scheme was 43,409,000, which represented approximately 8.5% of the Company’s
shares in issue as that date. The Company may seek approval of the Company’s shareholders in
general meeting for refreshing the 10% limit under the New Share Option Scheme save that the
total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options o be granted under the
New Share Option Scheme under the limit as “refreshed” shail not exceed 10% of the fotal
number of Shares in issue as at the date of approval of the limit.

The total number of Shares issued and 1o be issued upon exercise of the options granted to each
participant (including both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period shalt not
exceed 1% of the fotal number of Shares in issue. Where any further grant of options to a
participant would result in the fotal number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
the opticns granted and to be granted to such person (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) in the 12-month period up to and including the date of such further grant
representing in aggregate over 1% of the total number of Shares in issue, such further grant must
be separately approved by the shareholders of the Company in general meeting with such
participant and his associates abstaining from voting.

The offer of a grant of share opfion may be accepted within 28 days from the date of the offer,
upon payment of a nonimal consideration of HKS1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of
the share options commences from the date of acceptance of the offer of the share options and
ends on @ date which is not later than 10 years from the date of the offer of the share opfions.
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued) Lo

All optiens granted under the Original Share Opfion Scheme and outstanding prior to the
termination of the Original Share Option Scheme shall continue to be valid and exercisable in
accordance therewith,

Details of the movements in the number of outstanding share options of the New Share Option
Scheme of the Company during the year are summarised as follows:

FAR EAST PHARMACEUTICAL TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED

*Price of
Company’s shares

Exercise Granted  Exercised At grant Al exercise

Name of category Exercise price Balance af during during Balance of date of date of

of participant Date of grant period  per share 1/7/2001 the year  the year 30/6/2002 opfions options

HKS HKS HKS

Employees 21172002 9/1/2002 2185 - 25000000  (1,000,000) 27,000,000 2425 2315
fo 8172012

26/4/2002 241412002 2300 - 2,000,000 (2,000,000) - 2378 2.579

fo 23/4/2012

Enfities providing 26/4/2002 241412002 2,300 - 4,330,000 (4,330,000) - 2.375 277
consulfancy services to 23/4/2012

21512002 24/4/2002 2.300 - 2,380,000 (2.380,000) - 2.800 2647

to 23/4/2012

- 36710000 (9.710,000) 27,000,000

The price of the Company’s shares disclosed at the date of the grant of the share options is the Stock
Exchange closing price on the trading day immediately prior to the date of the grant of the options.
The price of the Company’s shares disclosed at the date of the exercise of the share options is the
weighted average of the Stock Exchange closing prices over all of the exercises of options within the
disclosure category.
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DIRECTORS® INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year and up to date of this report, no directors are considered to have an interest in a
business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of
the Group, pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), other than those businesses of which the directors of the
Company were appointed as directors to represent the interest of the Company and/or the
Group.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
As atf the date of this report, the shareholders who were inferested in 10% or more of the issued

share capital of the Company according to the Register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 16(1) of the SD! Ordinance were as follows:

Number of Percentage of
Name shares holding
Great Wall Investment Group Limited 255,800,000 (Note) 50.26%
Ansbacher (BVI) Limited 255,800,000 (Note) 50.26%

Note: These shares are held by Great Wall investment Group Limited as the trustee of The Great Wall Unit
Trust, a unit trust of which all of the units in issue are owned by Ansbacher (BVI) Limited in its capacity
as the trustee of The C&C Trust, a discretionary family frust of which the objects include Mr, Cai Chong
Zhen and his spouse and the family members of Mr. Chen Ching Ken. The interests of Great wall
Investment Group Limited and Ansbacher (BVI) Limited in the 255,800,000 shares in the Company,
therefore, duplicate each other.

These interests have also been disclosed as "other interest” of Mr. Cai Chong Zhen and Mr. Chen Ching
Ken in the section headed "Directors’ interests in share capital and warrants”,

Save as disclosed above, no other party was recorded in the Register as having an interest of
10% or more in the issued share capital of the Company.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the connected transactions that are required to be disclosed for the year are set out in
note 25 to the financial statements. Save as disclosed therein, there were no other transactions
which would need to be disclosed as connected fransactions in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive directors are of the opinion that the terms of the above
fransactions are fair and reasonable so far as the shareholders of the Company are concerned;
and fthat the fransactions have been entered into by the Group in its ordinary and usual course
of business and were carried out in accordance with the ferms of the agreements governing
such fransactions.
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POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Details of the significant post balance sheet events of the Group are set out in note 27 to the
financial statements.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of ifs subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the
Company’s listed securities during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of association or the
laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata
basis to its existing shareholders.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

To comply with the Code of Best Practice as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, the
Company set up an Audit Committee (the "Committee”) on 26 July 2000 with written terms of
reference. The Committee comprises two independent non-executive directors of the Company,
namely Ms. Hu Ling Po and Mr. Yu Er Feng.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF BEST PRACTICE

In the opinion of the directors, the Company has complied with the Code of Best Practice as set
out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules throughout the accounting period covered by this annual
report except that the independent non-executive directors are not appointed for any specific
term of office but are subject fo retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meetfing of the Company in accordance with the articles of association of the Company.

AUDITORS

Charles Chan, Ip & Fung CPA Limited will retire and a resolution for their reappointment as
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Cai Chong Zhen
Chairman

Hong Kong

21 October 2002

FAR EAST PHARMACEUTICAL TECHNOLOGY COMPANY UMITED
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CCIF

Charles Chan, Ip & Fung CPA Ltd.
37th Floor, Hennessy Centre
500 Hennessy Road
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
FAR EAST PHARMACEUTICAL TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
(INCORPORATED IN THE CAYMAN ISLANDS WITH LIMITED LIABILITY)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 25 to 69 which have been prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS

The Company’s directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements which give a
tfrue and fair view. In preparing financial statements which give a true and fair view it is
fundamental that appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our audit, on those statements
and to report our opinion to you.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Society of Accountants. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence
relevant 1o the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes an
assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the directors in the preparation
of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the
circumstances of the Company and of the Group, consistently applied and adequately
disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which
we considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable
assurance -as to whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. In forming
our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the
financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion,

OPINION

In our ‘opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of offairs of the
Company and of the Group as at 30 June 2002 and of its profit and cash flows of the Group for
the year then ended and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Charles Chan, Ip & Fung CPA Lid.
Certified Public Accountfants

Hong Kong

21 October 2002

Chan Wai Dune, Charles
Practising Certificate Number PO0712




CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

TURNOVER

COST OF SALES

GROSS PROFIT
OTHER REVENUE
OTHER EXPENSES
Selling and disfribution costs

Administrative expenses
Other operatfing expenses

PROFIT FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
FINANCE COSTS

SHARE OF RESULT OF
A JOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITY

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION AND
MINORITY INTERESTS

TAXATION

PROFIT BEFORE MINORITY INTERESTS

MINORITY INTERESTS

NET PROFIT FROM ORDINARY
ACTIVITIES ATTRIBUTABLE TO
SHAREHOLDERS

FINAL DIVIDEND PROPOSED

EARNINGS PER SHARE
- Basic

- Diluted

Year ended 30 June 2002

2002 2007

Notes HK$°000 HK$ 000
3 715,717 409,633
(443,807) (254,113)

271,910 155,520

3 3,286 2,459
(71,150) (32,456)
(28,438) (15,656)
- (902)
(99,588) (49.014)

5 175,608 108,965
7 (520) (236)
a3n -

174,957 108,729
8 (36,395) (14,321)
138,562 94,408

(3,823) 133

9,23 134,739 94,541
14,297

10 22,902

71
HK33.5 cents

HK30.0 cents

HK31.4 cents

HK29.7 cents

The notes on pages 31 fo 69 form an integral part of these financial statements.

FAR EAST PHARMACEUTICAL TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES

FAR EAST PHARMACEUTICAL TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED

Year ended 30 June 2002

EXCHANGE DIFFERENCES ARISING
FROM TRANSLATION OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF OVERSEAS
OPERATIONS

SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF FIXED
ASSETS

NET GAINS NOT RECOGNISED IN THE
INCOME STATEMENT

NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE
TO SHAREHOLDERS

TOTAL RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES

Notes

23

23

2002 2001
HK$'000 HK$°000
1,583 -

- 6,989

1,583 6.989
134,739 94,541
136,322 101,530

The notes on pages 31 to 69 form an integral part of these financial statements,




CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 27

30 June 2002

2
2002 2001 z
Notes HK$’000 HKS 000 §
O
ASSETS >
Non-current assets 9
Fixed assets 12 105,846 103,099 :
Goodwill 13 1,701 2,164 2
Intangible assets 14 37,241 18,164 g
Interest in a jointly-controlled entity 15 - 131 £
Q
<
144,788 123,558 g
g
Current assets %’
Inventories 17 46,703 10,910 g
Accounts receivable 18 177,834 79,597
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 810 14,989
Cash and bank balances 19 465,483 117,559
690,830 223,055
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable 20 65,956 19,486
Accrued liabilities, deposits received and
other payables 43,590 27,002
Due to related companies 9.740 5,567
Due to directors 546 -
Tox payable 14,897 4,130
134,729 56,185
Net current assets 556,101 166,870
Total assets less current liabilities 700,889 290,428
Minority interests 24(b) 5,032 1,199
NET ASSETS 695,857 289,229
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Issued capital 22 50,893 34,400
Reserves 23 622,062 240,532
Proposed dividend 10, 23 22,902 14,297
695,857 289,229
Approved by the board of directors on 21 October 2002.
On behalf of the board
Cai Chong Zhen Cai Cong Yi

Director Director

The notes on pages 31 to 69 form an integral part of these financial statements.




CoNsOLIDATED CaASH FLow STATEMENT

FAR EAST PHARMACEUTICAL TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED

Year ended 30 June 2002

NET CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

RETURNS ON INVESTMENTS AND
SERVICING OF FINANCE
Interest received
Interest paid
Dividends paid

NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM RETURNS
ON INVESTMENTS AND SERVICING
OF FINANCE

TAXATION
Overseas taxation paid

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of fixed assets
Capital contribution to a jointly-controlled enftity
Loan advance to a jointly-controlled enftity
Acquisition of a subsidiary
Addition of intangible asset

NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

NET CASH INFLOW BEFORE FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

Notes

24(a)

24(c)

2002 2001
HK$’000 HK$'000
122,598 118,532
2,767 2,459
(105) (236)
(14,297) (15,000)
(11,635) 2,777)
(25,662) (17.109)
(16,719) (66,694)
- (131)

(534) -

- (9.687)
(5,673) -
(22,926) (76,512)
62,375 12,134




CoNSOLIDATED CasH FLow STATEMENT 29)
Year ended 30 June 2002

2
2002 2001 —_ Z
Notes HK$°000 HKS$ 000 %
Q
>
NET CASH INFLOW BEFORE FINANCING g
ACTIVITIES 62,375 12,134 %
Q
FINANCING 24(b) ' S
Repayment of bank loans - (17.514) %
Proceeds from conversion of redeemable s
convertible bonds 93,546 - %
Proceeds from issue of shares for cash i
consideration 204,215 103,730 §
Share issue expenses (2,364) (13.952) -
Expenses for redeemable convertible bonds (10,794) ' - -
NET CASH INFLOW FROM FINANCING -
ACTIVITIES 284,603 72,264 o
INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS 346,978 84,398
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR 117,559 33,161 o
EFFECT ON FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE
CHANGES 946 -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF YEAR 465,483 117,559
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances 465,483 117,559

The notes on pages 31 to 69 form an integral part of these financial statements. _—




BALANCE SHEET

FAR EAST PHARMACEUTICAL TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED

30 June 2002

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Fixed assefts
Interests in subsidiaries

Current assets
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
Dividends receivable
Cash and bank balances

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Due to directors
Accrued liabilities and other payables

Net current assets

NET ASSETS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Issued capital
Reserves
Proposed dividend

Approved by the board of directors on 21 October 2002,

On behalf of the board

Cai Chong Zhen
Director

2002 2001
Notes HK$°000 HKS 000
12 - 203
16 392,608 188,178
392,608 188,381
1 1
30,155 21,021
83,910 3,596
114,066 24,618
546 -
1,224 1,638
1,770 1,638
112,296 22,980
504,904 211,361
22 50,893 34,400
23 431,109 162,664
10, 23 22,902 14,297
504,904 211,361

Cai Cong Yi

Director

The notes on pages 31 to 69 form an integral part of these financial statements,




NoTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Sil

I

30 June 2002

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities of the
Company’s subsidiaries are set ouf in note 16 1o the financial statements. There were no
changes in the nature of the subsidiaries’ principal activities during the year.

The Company is a subsidiary of Great Wall investment Group Limited ("Great Wall
Investment”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, which is considered by
the directors to be the Company’s ultimate holding company as at the balance sheet
date.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

a) BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles in Hong Kong and comply with Statements of
Standard Accounting Practice ("SSAP”) issued by the Hong Kong Society of
Accountants ("HKSA") and the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and the Rules governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost
convention as maodified by the revaluation of certain properties.

b) NEW ADOPTION OF THE STATEMENTS OF STANDARD ACCOUNTING PRACTICE

In the current vear, the Group adopted, for the first time, the following SSAPs issued by
the HKSA which are effective for accounting periods commencing on or after 1 July

2001

SSAP @ (revised) : Events after the balance sheet date

SSAP 26 . Segment reporting

SSAP 28 . Provisions, contingent liabllities and contingent assets

SSAP 29 ;. Intangible assets

SSAP 30 ;. Business combinations

SSAP 31 . Impairment of assets

SSAP 32 . Consolidated financial statements and accounting for

investments in subsidiaries

FAR EAST PHARMACEUTICAL TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30 June 2002

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POUICIES (Continued)

b) NEW ADOPTION OF THE STATEMENTS OF STANDARD ACCOUNTING PRACTICE
(Continued)

The effects on the adoption of the above accounting standards are summarised as
follows:

i)

i)

iv)

v)

The adoption of SSAP 9 (revised) “Events affer the balance sheet date” results
in a change in accounting policy whereby dividends proposed after the
balance sheet date are no longer recognised as a liability at the balance
sheet date, while the dividend income proposed or declared by the
subsidiaries after the balance sheet date are nc longer recognised as income
by the parent companies. Proposed dividends are now separately disclosed on
the face of the balance sheet within capital and reserves section. This change
in accounting policy has been applied retrospectively and comparative
figures have been restated.

The adoption of SSAP 26 “Segment reporting” requires comprehensive
disclosure of financial information by segments (both business and
geographical segments) of the Group. This change in accounting policy has
been applied retrospectively and the relevant disclosure has been summarised
in Note 4.

The adoption of SSAP 28 "Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent
assets” has no material impact on the reported financial position or results of
the Group except that additional disclosures in relation to the nature, fiming
and movement of the provisions of the Group as at 30 June 2002 have been
made.

The adoption of SSAP 29 “intangible Assets” resulfs in no change to the
previously adopted accounting policy and no material impact on the
reporfted financial position or results of the Group.

The adoption of SSAP 30 "Business combinations” results in no change to the
previously adopted accounting policy where goodwill arising from business
combination is amortised fo the income statement over its estimated
economic life. Goodwill is recognised as non-current asset in the balance
sheet and is carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. The Group will review, at each balance sheet date, the
carrying value of goodwill in accordance with SSAP 31 “"Impairment of assets”
and recognise or reverse an impairment loss, if any.
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

b) NEW ADOPTION OF THE STATEMENTS OF STANDARD ACCOUNTING PRACTICE
(Continued)

in addition tfo the adoption of the above standards, the Group has adopted the
conseqguential changes made to SSAP 10 "Accounting for investments in associates”,
SSAP 14 (revised) "Leases”, SSAP 17 "Property, plant and equipment”, SSAP 18
"Revenue” and SSAP 21 “Accounting for interasts in joint ventures”. Other than those
disclosed in the respective notes to the financial statements, the Group considers
that the consequential changes made to the above SSAPs do not have a material
impact on the financial statements of the Group.

FAR EAST PHARMACEUTICAL TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED

Unless ofherwise stated. the 2001 comparative figures presenfed herein have
incorporated the effect of the adjustments, where applicable, resulting from the
adoption of the new accounting standards above.

<) BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using the merger basis of
accounting as a result of the reorganisation scheme ("Group Reorganisation”) which
rationalising the structure of the Group for the listing of the Company’s Shares on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and completed on 26 July 2000. Under this
basis, the Company has been freated as the holding company of its subsidiaries for
the financial years presented rather than from the date of their acquisition, except
for Fujian Yannian Pharmaceutical Company Limited (*Yannian™) (formerly known as
Minging Factory) which was acguired subsequent to the completion of the Group
Reorganisation and is therefore consclidated from its effective date of acquisition,
Accordingly, the consolidated results of the Group for the years ended 30 June 2001
and 2002 include the results of the Company and its subsidiaries with effect from 1
July 1999 or since their respective dates of incorporation, where this is a shorter
period,

All significant intercompany fransactions and balances within the Group are
eliminated on consclidation.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary represents the difference between the
sales proceeds and the Group’s share of its net assets together with any goodwill or
capital reserves which was not previously charged or recognised in the consolidated
income statement,

Minority interests represent the interest of outside shareholders in the operating
results and net assets of subsidiaries.
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGHNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

d)

e)

f)

SUBSIDIARIES

A subsidiary is an enterprise in which the Company, directly or indirectly, controls
more than half of its voting power or issued share capital, or controls the composition
of its board of directors.

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s balance sheet at cost less
any identified impairment loss,

JOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITIES

A joint venture is a contfractual arrangement whereby two or more parties undertake
an economic activity which is subject to joint control and none of the participating
parties has unilateral control over the economic activity.

Jointly-controlled entity is a contractual arrangement that involves the establishment
of a corporation, partnership or other entity in which each venturer has an infterest,

Investment in jointly-controlled entity is stated at cost less provision, if necessary, for
any impairment loss in value.

The Group’s share of the post acquisition results and reserves of jointly-controlled
entities is included in the consclidated income statement and consolidated reserves,
respectively. The Group’s interest in jointly-confrolled entity is stated in the
consolidated balance sheet at the Group’s share of net assets under the equity
method of accounting less any provision for diminution in value other than that
considered to be temporary in nature deemed necessary by the directors.

GOODWILL

Goodwill, which represents the excess of purchase consideration over the fair values
ascribed to the separable net assets of subsidiaries acquired at the date of
acquisition, is stated at cost and amortised by equal annual instalments over its
estimated useful economic life of five years.

Unamortised goodwill is charged to the income statement upon disposal of the
relevant subsidiaries.

The carrying amount of goodwill is reviewed annually by the directors and an
impairment |0ss is recognised where considered necessary.
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

9)

FIXED ASSETS

Fixed assets are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs
of bringing the asset 1o ifs working condition and location for its intended use.
Expenditure incurred after fixed assets have been put into operation, such cs repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the income statement in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the
expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to
be obtained from the use of a fixed asset beyond its originally assessed standard of
performance, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of that asset.

Changes in the values of fixed assets are dealt with as movements in the fixed assets
revaluation reserve. Independent valuations are performed every three years. In the
intervening years, the directors review the carrying amount of the properties and
adjustment is made where there has been a material change in value. Increases in
valuation are credited o the fixed assets revaluation reserve. Decreases in valuation
are first set off against increases on earlier valuations in respect of the same property
and are thereafter debited to the income statement. Any subsequent increases are
credited to the income statement up to the amount previously debited.

Where, in the opinion of the directors, the recoverable amount of an asset has
declined below its carrying amounts, the carrying amount is reduced to reflect the
decline in value. in determining the recoverable amount of assets, expected fufure
cash flows are not discounted 1o their present values.

Depreciation is provided on the straight-line basis to write off the cost or valuation of
each asset over its estimated useful life, The estimated useful lives used for this
purpose are as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings outside Hong Kong Over the lease terms or 10
years, whichever is shorter

Land premium Over the land-use-right pericd

Leasehold improvements Over the lease terms or 5
years, whichever is shorter

Plant and machinery 5 vears

Furniture, fixtures and eguipment 5 years

Motor vehicles 5 years

Major costs incurred in restoring fixed assets to their normal working condition are
charged fo the income statement. Improvements are capitalised and depreciated
over their expected useful lives to the Group.

FAR EAST PHARMACEUTICAL TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY ©OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

g)

h)

FIXED ASSETS (Continued)

Construction in progress represents cosfs incurred for buildings under construction,
and plant and machinery pending installation. Cost comprises direct costs incurred
during the periods of construction, installation and testing. No depreciation is
provided on construction in progress. Construction in progress is transferred to fixed
assefs when it is capable of producing a saleable output on a commercial basis.

The gain or loss on disposal of fixed assefs is the difference between the net sales

-proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in the

income statement. Any revaluation reserve pbalance remaining attributable to the
relevant assef is transferred fo retained earnings and is shown as a movement in
reserves.

INTANGIBLE ASSET

The intangible asset represents the fair value of the rights fo manufacture and sale of
certain pharmaceutical products in the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC”") of a
subsidiary ascribed fo its net underlying assets acquired by the Group.

The intangible asset is amortised on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful
commercial life of the pharmaceutical products of five years commencing from the
date when the pharmaceutical products are put info commercial production. The
in‘rongible asset is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation, and any provision for
impairment in value deemed necessary by the directors.

IMPAIRMENT

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tfangible
and infangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the assef is estimated in order o defermine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any.

Estimated recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of the estimated value from
its future use and ulfimate disposal, and its net selling price.

If the recoverable amount of an assef is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount,
Impairment losses are recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverse, the carrying amount of the asset is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that fthe
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been defermined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continusd)

»

k)

m)

n)

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net redlisable value. Cost, calculated
on a first-in, first-out basis, comprises all costs of purchases, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing fthe inventories to their present location and
condition. Provision is made for obsolete, slow moving or defective items where
appropriate.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

Provision is made against tfrade receivables to the extent they are considered to be
doubtful. Trade receivables in the balance sheet are stated net of such provision.

CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liguid investments which are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash without notice and which were within three
months of maturity when acquired less advances from banks repayable within three
months from the date of the odvance. Cash equivaients include investments and
advances denominated in foreign currencies provided that they fulfil the above
criteria.

DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred taxation is accounted for under the liability method in respect of timing
differences between profit as computed for taxation purposes and profit as stated in
the financial statements to the extent that a liability or asset is expected with
reasonable probability to crystallise in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax asset is
notf recognised unless its realisation is assured beyond reasonable doubt.

OPERATING LEASES

Lease where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets remain with
the lessor are accounted for as coperating leases are charged fo the income
statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

FAR EAST PHARMACEUTICAL TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED ,7
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

o)

P)

a)

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT COSTS

Research and development costs are expensed as incurred, except where the
product or process is clearly defined and the costs atfiributable to the product or
process can be separately identified and measured reliably is technically feasible;
the Company intends to produce and market, or use, the product or process; the
existence of a market for the product or process or, if it is to be used internally rather
than sold, its usefulness to the Company, can be demonstrated; and adequate
resources exist, or their availability can be demonstrated, to complete the project
and market or use the product or process.

Such development costs are recognised as an asset fo the extent of the amount
that, taken together with further development costs, related production costs, and
selling and adminisfrative costs directly incurred in marketing the product, is
probable of being recovered from related future economic benefits. The excess
amount is written off as incurred,

PROVISIONS

Provision are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits which can be reasonably estimated will be reguired fo settle such
obligation.

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the
current best estimate. Where the effect of the fime value of money is material, the
amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditures expected to be
required fo settle the obligation.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can also
be a present obligation arising from past events that is not recognised because it is
not probable that outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements. When a change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is
probable, they will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past evenfts and whose
existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain events not wholly within the control of the Group.
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

q)

N

s)

H

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS (Continued)

Confingent assets are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually
certain, an asset is recognised.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

D) Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised on the transfer of risks and
rewards of ownership, which generally coincides with the time when the goods
are delivered to customers and tifle has passed.

i Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis, faking info account
the principal amounts outstanding and the interest rates applicable.

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

Transactions in foreign currencies during the year are translated at exchange rates
ruling at the fransaction dates. Monetary assetfs and liabilities expressed in foreign
currencies at the balonce sheet date are translated at rates of exchange ruling at
the balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising in these cases are dealt with in
the income statement.

On combination, the financial statements of overseas subsidiaries denominated in
foreign currencies are transiafed into Hong Kong dollars at the applicable rates of
exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. The resulting translation differences are
declt with in the currency translation reserve,

RETIREMENT SCHEME

The Group operates a defined contfribution mandatory provident fund retirement
benefits scheme (the "Hong Kong Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to participate in the Hong
Kong Scheme. The Hong Kong Scheme became effective on 1 December 2000.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged fto the income statement as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the Hong Kong Scheme. The assets of the Hong Kong Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees when confributed info
the Hong Kong Scheme.

FAR EAST PHARMACEUTICAL TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

H

u)

v)

RETIREMENT SCHEME (continued)

Pursuant to the relevant regulations of the PRC government, subsidiaries of the
Company operating in the PRC have participated in a local municipal government
retirement benefits scheme (the "PRC Scheme”) whereby the subsidiaries are
required to contribute 20% of the basic salaries of their employees to the PRC
Scheme to fund their retirement benefits. The local municipal government
undertakes to assume the retirement benefits obligations of all existing and future
retired employees of the subsidiaries. The only obligation of the Group with respect to
the PRC Scheme is to pay the ongoing required contributions under the PRC
Scheme. Confributions under the PRC Scheme are charged to the income statement
as incurred. There are no provisions under the PRC Scheme whereby forfeited
contributions may be used to reduce future contributions.

RELATED PARTIES

Two parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or
indirectly, fo control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other
party in making financial and operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be
related if they are subject fo common confrol or common significant influence.

SEGMENT REPORTING

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged either in
providing products or services (business segment), or in providing products or services
within a particular economic environment (geographical segment), which is subject
to risks and rewards that are different from those of other segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting, the Group has chosen
business segment information as the primary reporting format and geographical
segment information as the secondary reporting format,

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities include items directly
atftributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable
basis to that segment. For example, segment assets may include inventories, frade
receivables and property, plant and equipment. Segment revenue, expenses, assefs
and liabilities are determined before intra-group balances and intra-group
transactions are eliminated as part of the consolidation process, except to the
extent that such infra-group balances and transactions are between group
enterprises within a single segment. Intra-segment pricing is based on similar terms as
those available to other external parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the year to acquire
segment assetfs (both tangible and intangible) that are expected to be used for
more than one vear.
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

v)  SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and corporate assets, interest-bearing
loans, borrowings, corporate and financing expenses and minority intferests.

TURNOVER AND OTHER REVENUE

Turnover represents the invoiced value of goods sold, net of tfrade discounts and returns. All
the Group's turnover is principally derived in the PRC.

2002 2001
HK$'000 HKS$ 000
Turnover

Manufacture and distribution of pharmaceutical products 715,717 409,633

Other revenue
Interest income 2,767 2,459
Exchange gain 519 -
3,286 2,459
Total revenue 719,003 412,092

SEGMENT INFORMATION

i) Business segments

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and distribution of
pharmaceutical products.

FAR EAST PHARMACEUTICAL TECHNOLOGY COMPANY UMITED
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4, SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

)

Business segments (Continued)

An analysis of the Group’s perfermance by business segments, namely ‘“Manufacture
and distribution of pharmaceutical products” and ‘Corporate and others’ is as

follows:

External sales

Segment results

Interest income
Interest expense
Share of result
of a jointly-
controlled entity
Taxation
Minority interests

Profit attributable
to shareholders

Manufacture and
distribution of
pharmaceutical
products

2002 2001

HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000

715,717  409.633

Corporate
and others

Consolidated
total
2002 2001
HK$’000 HKS'000

- (a) 715,717 409,633

181,353 112,857

2,703 1,133
- (236)

a3n -
(36,395) (14,321)

(6,351)(b) 172,841 106,506

2,767 2,459
(520) (236)

(131) -
(36,395) (14.321)
(3,823) 133

134,739 94,541
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4, SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
i) Business segments (Continued)

Manufacture and
distribution of

pharmaceutical Corporate Consolidated
products and others total
2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001

HK$°000 HKS'000 HK$°000 HKS'000 HK$°000 HKS'000

FAR EAST PHARMACEUTICAL TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED

Assets

Segment assets 749,209 342,694 86,409 3,919 835,618 346,613
Liabilities

Segment liabilities 132,924 54,511 1,805 1,674 134,729 56,185

Other information
Capital expenditure 16,007 66,413 712 281 16,719 66,694
Depreciation 14,371 4,792 216 44 14,587 4,836
Amortisation 3,210 155 - - 3,210 155
Non-cash expenses

other than

depreciation and

amortisation 1,631 - 203 - 1,834 ~
Surplus on

revaluation

of leasehold

land and building

recognised

directly in equity - 6,989 - - - 6,989
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4, SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
i) Business segments (Continuved)

a) Turnover

2002 2001
HK$'000 HKS 000

Manufacture aond distribution of:
Anti-viral drugs 227,412 208,282
Chinese patent medicines 113,320 24,590
Antibiotics 87,243 78,979
Anti-hypotfensive drugs 84,769 -
Vitamins 59,876 42,599
Analgesics 40,741 29,009
Chinese fonic liguor 29,591 26,174
Others 72,765 -
715,717 409,633

D) Profit from operating activities

2002 2001
HK$'000 HKS 000

Manufacture and distribution of:
Anti-viral drugs 75,341 73,436
Chinese patent medicines 31,661 7,980
Antibiotics 18,066 18,272
Anti-hypotensive drugs 20,742 -
Vitamins 3,163 2,542
Analgesics 3,470 2,946
Chinese tonic liquor 9,246 8.814
Others 22,367 -
184,056 113,990
Corporate and others (8,448) (6.025)

175,608 108,965
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4, SEGCMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
i) Geographical segment

In determining the Group’s geographical segments, revenues and results are
attributed to the segments based on the location of the customers, and assets are
attributed to the segments based on the location of the assets. No geographical
segment information is presented as over 90% of the Group’s revenue and results are
derived from customers based in the PRC.

An analysis of the carrying amount of segment assets and additions to fixed assets by
the geographical area in which the assets are located is as follows:

FAR EAST PHARMACEUTICAL TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED

2002 2001

Carrying Carrying

amount of amount of
segment Additions to segment Additions to
assets fixed assets assets  fixed assets
HK$'000 HK$’000 HKS'000 HK$ 000
The PRC, excluding Hong Kong 749,209 16,007 342,694 66,413
Hong Kong 86,409 712 3,919 281
835,618 16,719 346,613 66,694

PROFIT FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

[l

The Group’s profit from operating activities is arrived at after charging:

2002 2001

HK$’000 HKS'000

~Auditors’ remunerdation 808 1,080

Depreciation 14,587 4,836

Amortisation of intangible assets 2,747 -

Amortisation of goodwill 463 155

Loss on written off of fixed assets 237 -
Staff costs (excluding directors’ remuneration, note 6):

Wages and salaries 6,675 4,033

Retirement scheme contributions 1,278 510

7,953 4,543

Operating tease rentals in respect of land and buildings 1,880 1,496

Provision for doubtful debts 1,063 -
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6.

DIRECTORS® AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS® REMUNERATION

Details of the remuneration of the directors of the Company for the year disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are
as follows:

Group
2002 2001
HK$’000 HKS’000
Fees - -
Other emoluments of executive directors:
Basic salaries, housing benefits, other allowances
and benefits in kind to executive directors 5,727 5,706
Refirement benefits scheme contributions to
executive directors 23 76
5,750 5,782

The number of directors whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

Number of directors

2002 2001
Nil - HK$1,000,000 4 5
HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 2 2

There were no arrcngements under which a director waived or agreed fo waive any
remuneration.

The five highest paid individuals during the year are all directors, details of whose
remuneration are set out above.

No value is included in directors’ remuneration in respect of share options granted during
the year ended 30 June 2002 because, in the absence of a readily available market value
for the options on the Company’s shares, the directors are unable to arrive at an accurate
assessment of the value of the options granted.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors (including five
highest paid individuals) as an inducement to joint, or upon joining the Group, or
compensation for loss of office.




NoOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

47

©a

30 June 2002

FINANGE COSTS

Group
2002 2001
HK$’000 HKS$ 000
Interest payable on:
Bank loans wholly repayable within five years - 236
Redeemable convertible bonds 520 -
520 236
TAXATION
Group
2002 2001
HK$°000 HKS'000
Current year provision:
Overseas 36,395 - 14,321
Tax charge for the year 36,395 14,321

Hong Kong profits tax has not been provided (2001 Nil) because the Group did not
generate any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profifs
assessaple elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates, based on existing legislation, interpretations and practices in
respect thereof,

In accordance with the relevant approval documents issued by the PRC tax authorities,
Fujian Desheng Pharmaceuticals Company Limited ("Desheng”), a subsidiary of the
Company, operating in the PRC, is exempted from the PRC corporate income tax for the
first two profitable calendar years of operation starting from 1997 and thereafter is eligible
for a 50% relief from the PRC corporate income tax for the following three years. The
standard PRC corporate income tax rate applicable to Desheng is 24%.

Fujian Yannian Pharmaceutical Company Limited (“Yannian™), is another subsidiary of the
Company operating in the PRC. The PRC corporate income tax rate applicable to Yannian

is 24%.

Deferred tax has not been provided because there were no significant timing differences
at 30 June 2002 (2001: Nib).

No deferred tax has been provided on the revaluation surplus of the Group's properties

sifuated in the PRC because the Group presenfly does not infend to dispose of such
properties.

FAR EAST PHARMACEUTICAL TECHNOLOGY COMPANY UMITED
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9. NET PROFIT FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREFHOLDERS

The net profit from ordinary activities attrioutable o shareholders dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company is approximately HK$25,508,000 (20071; HKS16,568,000)

10. DRIVIDENDS

FAR EAST PHARMACEUTICAL TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED

2002 2001
HK$'000 HKS 000
Dividend paid
- Final dividend for 2001 af HK4 cents
(2000: HKSNIl). per ordinary share 14,297 -
Dividend proposed
- Final dividend for 2002 at HK4.5 cenfs
(2001 HK4 cents) per ordinary share 22,902 14,297
Totai dividends in respect of the year 22,902 14,297

During the year, the Group adopted the revised SSAP 9 "Events after the balance sheet
date”, To comply with this revised SSAR a prior year adjustment has been made to reclassify
the proposed final dividend for the year ended 30 June 2001 of HK$14,297,000, which was
recognised as a current liability at the prior year end, to the proposed final dividends
reserve account within the capital and reserves section of the balance sheet. The result of
this has been to reduce the Company’s and Group’'s current liabilities and increcse the
reserves previously reported as at 30 June 2001 by HK$14,297,000.

The amount of proposed final dividend is calculated based on 508,932,000 shares (2001
357,424,000 shares) in issue as at the date of approval of these financial statements.
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17. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share for the vear is based on the
following data:

FAR EAST PHARMACEUHCAL TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED

2002 2001
HK$’000 HKS'000
Earnings:
Profit attributable to shareholders and earnings for
the purposes of basic earnings per share 134,739 §4,541
Effect of dilutive potential shares:
Redeemable convertible bonds - inferest expenses 520 -
Profit attributable to shareholders and earnings
for the purposes of diluted earnings per share 135,259 94,541
2002 2001
Number of shares:
Weighted average number of shares for the purposes
of basic earnings per share - 402,331,726 315,147,945
Effect of dilutive potential shares;
Share options - 16,192,057 3,397,883
Redeemable convertible bonds 12,035,976 -
Weighted average number of shares for the purposes
of diluted earnings per share 430,559,759 318,545,828

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year ended 30 June 2002 does not
assume the conversion of the Company’s outstanding warrants since its exercise would
result in an increase in earnings per share for the year.
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12. FIXED ASSETS

Group

Cost orvaluation
At 1/7/2001
At cost
At professional
valuation

FAR EAST PHARMACEUTICAL TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED

Currency realignment
Additions

Transfer
Reclassification
Disposal

Af 30/6/2002

Accumulated depreciation
Af 17772001
Currency realignment
Provided during the
yeai
Reclassification
Written back on
disposal

At 3076/2002

Net book value
At 30/6/2002

At 30/6/2001

An analysis of cost or
valuation of the fixed
assets held by the
Group at 30 June
2002 is as follows:

At cost
At professional
valuation

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
land and Land Leasehold Plant and and Motor Construction
buildings premium improvements machinery  equipment vehicles In progress Total
HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK'S"000 HK$°000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$°000 HKS'000
- - 5,818 9,857 1,998 586 66,318 84,577
13,504 17,757 - - - - - 31,261
13,504 17,757 5818 9,857 1,998 586 66,318 115,838
112 147 48 82 14 5 550 958
77 - 556 15,506 580 - - 16,719
34,257 - - 32,611 - - (66,868) -
- - - - (1,162) 1,162 - -
- - - - (246) - - (246)
47,950 17,904 6,422 58,056 1,184 1,753 - 133,269
- - 3,735 7,900 1,064 40 - 12,739
- - 31 66 9 - - 106
4,286 269 1,213 8,327 151 kIl - 14,587
- - - - (755) 755 - -
- - - - ® - - ®
4,286 269 4,979 16,293 460 1,136 - 27,423
43,664 17,635 1,443 41,763 724 617 - 105,846
13,504 17,757 2,083 1,957 934 546 66,318 103,099
- - 6,422 58,056 1,184 1,753 - 67,415
47,950 17,904 - - - - - 65,854
47,950 17,904 6,422 58,056 1,184 1,753 - 133,269
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FIXED ASSETS (Continued)

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
land and land  Lleasehold Plant and and Motor Construction
buildings premium improvements machinery  equipment vehicles  in progress Total

HK$000 HK$000 HK$*000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 Hk$°000 HK$ 000 HK$000

Company

Cost
At 1/7/2001 - - - - 238 - - 238
Additions - - - - - - - -
Disposal - - - - (238) - - (238)

At 30/6/2002 - - - - - - . -

Accumulated depreciation

At 1/7/2001 - - - - 35 - - 35
Provided during the

year - - - - - - - -
Wiitten back on

disposal - - - - (35) - - (35)

At 30/6/2002 - - - - - - - -

Net book value
At 30/6/2002 - - - - - - - -

At 30/6/2001 - - - - 203 - - 203

The Group's leasehold land and buildings are all situated outside Hong Kong and are held
under medium term leases. All the leasehold land and buildings were revalued by Castores
Magi Surveyors Limited ("Castores”), an independent firm of professional valuers, at 30 June
2001 at HK$13.504,000 on a depreciated replacement cost basis. A surplus of HKS1,228,000
arising therefrom and representing the excess of the revalued amounts over the then
carrying values of the revalued assets, on an individual assets basis, has been credited to
the fixed assets revaluation reserve (note 23).

FAR EAST PHARMACEUTICAL TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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12.

13.

FIXED ASSETS (Continued)

The Group entered intc an agreement with the Land Administration Bureau of the Yong Tai
County, Fujian Province, the PRC (the "LAB”) in respect of the purchase of a parcel of land
(the "Old Land™) in Yong Tai County, Fujian Province, the PRC for the purposes of erecting a
drug production facilities and its related auxiliary facilities. The cost incurred was classified
under "Land premium”. During the year ended 30 June 2001, the Group entered into
another agreement with LAB in consideration and in exchange for the Old Land by
onother parcel of land in Yong Tai County, Fujian Province, the PRC (the "New Land”). The
land use right certificate of the New Land has been obtained. The New Land was revalued
by Castores at 30 June 2001 at HKS17,757,000 on an open market basis. A surplus of
HKS$5,794,000 arising therefrom has been credited to the fixed assets revaiuation reserve
(note 23).

Had the Group’s leasehold Jand and buildings and land premium been stated at costs less
accumulated depreciation, they would have been included in the financial statements at
approximately HK$51,806,000 (2001: HK$21,856,000).

GCOCDWILL
Group
HKS 000
Cost
At 1/7/2001 and 30/6/2002 2,319
Amortisation
At 1/7/2001 155
Provided for the year 463
At 30/6/2002 618
Net book value
At 30/6/2002 1,701

At 30/6/2001 2,164
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14.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost
At 1/7/2001 (note (a))
Currency realignment
Addition (note (b))
At 30/6/2002
Amortisation
At 1/7/2001
Provided for the yvear

At 30/6/2002

Net book value
At 30/6/2002

At 30/6/2001

Notes:

30 June 2002

Group
HKS'000

18,164
151
21,673

39,988

2,747

2,747

37.247

18,164

Q) According to an independent valuation performed by Castores on the basis of Fair Market
Value in Contfinued Use, the fair market value of the intangible asset at 7 March 2001, the date
the Group acquired the related subsidiary, amounted to HK$18,164,000.

b) As at 30 June 2002, the products in respect of which the intangible asset was acquired have
not yet been put into commercial production and accordingly, no amortisation has been
provided for the intangible asset acquired during the year.

FAR EAST PHARMACEUTICAL TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMIED
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18.

16.

INTEREST IN A JOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITY

Group
2002 2001
HK$°000 HK$ 000
Share of net assets - 131
Amount due from a jointly-confrolled entity 534 -
534 131
Less: Provision for impairment (534) -
- 131
Particulars of the joinity-confrolled entity are set out below:
Place of Paid-up Percentage of
Business establishment registered Ownership Voting Principal
Name structure and operations capital interest power activities
HEEREY Corporate People’s RMB200,000 70% 70%  Not yet
R E Republic commenced
BIRAF of Ching business
INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
Company
2002 2001
HK$°'000 HKS'000
Unlisted shares, at cost 105,015 106,015
Due. from subsidiaries 287,593 83.163
392,608 188,178

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, inferest-free and have no fixed terms of
repayment.




NoTes 10 THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16.

17.

INTERESTS [N SUBSIRIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of the subsidiaries are set out below:

Place of

incorporation/
establishment

Name and operations

Held directly

Far East Global British Virgin
Group Limited islands
("FEGG")

Held indirectly

Fujian Desheng People’s
Pharmaceuticals Republic
Company Limited of China
("Desheng”)

Global Profit Far Hong Kong
East Limited

Fujian Yannian People’s
Pharmaceutical Republic
Company Limited of China

(*Yannian”)
(Formerly known
as Minging Factory)

INVENTORIES

Raw materials
Work in progress
Finished goods

Nominal
value of
issued and

paid-up share/
registered capital

Us$1,007

RMB11,891,923

HKS$2

RMB3,513,000

30 June 2002

Equity interests

attributable to
the Company

2002

100%

100%

100%

85%

Principal
activities
2001
100% Investment
holding
100% Manufacture and
distribution of
pharmaceutical
products
100% Investment
holding
85% Manufacture and
distribution of
pharmaceutical
products
Group
2002 2001
HK$'000 HKS'000
31,780 6,295
253 277
14,670 4,338
46,703 10,910

No inventories were stated af net realisable value at 30 June 2002 (2001: Nil).

FAR EAST PHARMACEUTICAL TECHNOLOGY COMP'ANY UMITED
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18.

19.

20.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

The aging of the Group’s accounts receivable is analysed as follows:

Group

2002 2001
HK$’000 HKS 000

Ouftstanding balances with ages:
30 days or less 88,071 40,687
31 .days to 60 days 79,440 35,104
61 days to 180 days 10,323 1.125
Over 180 days - 2,681
Total 177,834 79,597

Trading ferms with customers are largely on credit, except for new customers where
payment in advance is normally required. Invoices are normally payable within 60 days of
issuance, except for established customers when the terms are extended to 90 days. Each
customer has a maximum credit limif, which is granfed and approved by senior
management, The Group seeks to maintain sfrict confrol over its outstanding receivables
and overdue balances are regularly reviewed by senior management. Accounts
receivable are recognised and carried at their original invoiced amounts less any
provisions for doubtful debts when collection of the full amount is no longer probable. Bad
debis are written off as incurred.

CASH AND BANK BALANGCES

As at 30 June 2002, the Group’s cash and bank balances denominated in Renminbi
("RMB”) amounted to approximately HK$381,563,000 (2001: HK$113,952,000). RMB is not
freely convertible into foreign currencies. Under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Confrol
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sales and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for foreign currencies through banks
that are authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

The aging of the Group’s accounts payable is analysed as follows:

Group
2002 2001
HK$°'000 HKS$ 000
Outstanding balances with ages:
30 days or less 65,004 17.261
Over 30 days 952 2,225

65,956 19,486
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REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 14 August 2001, the Company and Credit Suisse First Boston (Hong Kong) Limited
("CSFB”), an independent third party, entered into a subscription agreement in relation o
the subscription of unlisted and unsecured redeemable convertible bonds of the Company
("Subscription Agreement”).

Under the Subscription Agreement, inter aiia; (i) the Company agreed to issue and CSFB
agreed to purchase convertfible bonds with an aggregate principal amount of
US$4,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$31,200,000) (*Originai Tranche 1 Bonds”); (i)
the Company granted tfo CSFB an option during a limited period, to require the Company
to issue additional convertible bonds with an aggregate principal amount of up to
US$4,000,000 on substantially the same terms as in the Original Tranche 1 Bonds
("Additionat Tranche 1 Bonds”), and (iii) CSFB granfed to the Company an option during a
limited period after the conversion of the Iast Original Tranche 1 Bond, to issue and to
require CSFB to subscribe and pay for convertible bonds with an aggregate principal
amount of up to US$4,000,000 on substantially the same terms as in the Original Tranche 1
Bonds ("Tranche 2 Bonds”). All the convertible bonds bear interest at the rate of 2.5% per
annum and are due on 14 August 2004.

The unsecured redeemable convertible bonds of the Company are convertible into
ordinary shares of HKS0.10 each in the Company (the "Shares”) at a conversion price per
Share equal to, at the option of CSFB, (i) at 125% of the average closing price per Share for
the 30 business days immediately prior to the date of the Subscription Agreement in
respect of the Criginal Tranche 1 Bonds and the Additional Tranche 1 Bonds, and HK$1.91
per Share in respect of the Tranche 2 Bonds, both subject to adjustment; or (i) at 93% of
the average of any four consecutive closing prices per Share as selected by CSFB during
the 30 business days immediately prior to the date on which the conversion notice of CSFB
is received by the Company in respect of the Criginal Tranche 1 Bonds and the Additional
Tranche 1 Bonds. and 91% of the average of any four consecutive closing prices per Share
as selected by CSFB during the 30 business days immediately prior to the date on which
the conversion notfice of CSFB is received by the Company in respect of the Tranche 2
Bonds.

Pursuant fo the Subscription Agreement, the Company has also granted a subscription
right (the "Subscription Right”) to CSFB, pursuant to which CSFB is entitied fo subscribe for
up 1o 4.741,641 Shares at a subscription price of HK$1.645 per Share. The Subscription Right
is exercisable by CSFB af any fime from 14 August 2001 to 14 August 2004, inclusive,

On 14 August 2001 and 17 December 2001, CSFB subscribed for Original Tranche 1 Bonds
and Additional Tranche 1 Bonds with an aggregate principal amount of US$8,000,000 and
proceeds of approximately HK$62,400,000, before issued expenses, were received by the
Company. The Company issued 53,898,000 Shares thereafter at various prices ranging from
HKS$0.977 per Share to HK$1.267 per Share as a result of the conversion by CSFB of the
Original Tranche 1 Bonds and Additional Tranche 1 Bonds for an aggregate amount of
US$$8,000,000 (approximately HK$62,400,000). The excess of the conversion price over the
nominal value of Shares issued, amounting to approximately HK$56,981,000, before related
expenses, had been credited to the share premium account.

FAR EAST PHARMACEUTICAL TECHNOLOGY COMPANY UMITED
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21.

22.

REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

On 14 December 2001, the Company exercised an option granted by CSFB fo require CSFB
to subscribe and pay for Tranche 2 Bonds with an aggregate principal amount of
US$4,000,000. Proceeds of approximately HKS31,200,000., before issued expenses, were
received by the Company. Tranche 2 Bonds were issued on 10 January 2002. The Company
issued 16,584,000 shares thereafter at the prices ranging from HKS$1.846 per Share to
HK$1.91 per Share as a result of the conversion by CSFB of the Tranche 2 Bonds for an
aggregate amount of US$4,000,000 (approximately HKS31,200,000). The excess of the
conversion price over the nominal value of Shares issued, amounting to approximately
HK$29,517,000, before related expenses, had been credited to the share premium account,

SHARE CAPITAL

Company
2002 2001
HK$’000 HKS 000
Authorised:
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HKS0.10 each
(2001: 1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each) 100,000 100,000

Issued and fully paid:
508,932,000 ordinary shares of HKS0.10 each
(2001: 344,000,000 ordinary share of HKS0.10 each) 50,893 34,400
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22. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

The following is a summary of the above movements in the issued share capital of the

Company:
Number of
Share issued Par value
HK$'000
Share allotted and issued at par for cash on incorporation 1 -
Issued capital as at 30 June 2000 1 -
Shares issued as consideration for the acquisition of the
entire issued share capital of FEGG pursuant
to the Group Reorganisation 999,999 100
Capitalisation issue credited as fully paid conditional on
the share premium account of the Company
being credited as a result of the public share issue 239,000,000 -
Pro forma share capital as at 30 June 2000 240,000,000 100
New issue on public listing 80,000,000 8,000
Capitalisation of the share premium account as set
out above - 23,900
Shares issued on exercise of share options 4,000,000 400
Shares issued on placement 20,600,000 2,000
Share capital as at 30 June 2001 344,000,000 34,400
Shares issued on conversion of redeemable
convertible bonds (note (a)) 70,482,000 7,048
Shares issued on piacements (notes (b) and (c)) 80,000,000 8.000
Shares issued on exercise of share options
(notes (d) and (e)) 14,450,000 1,445
Share capital as at 30 June 2002 50,893

508,932,000

FAR EAST PHARMACEUTICAL TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED




NoTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FAR EAST PHARMACEUTICAL TECHNGCLOGY COMPANY LIMITED

30 June 2002

22.

SHARE CAPRITAL (Confinued)

The following changes in the Company’s issued share capital fook place during the yeaor
ended 30 June 2002:

(@

©

©)

(D

©)

On 14 August 2001, the Company and Credit Suisse First Boston (Hong Keng) Limited
("CSFB") entered info the Subscription Agreement in relation to the subscription of
redeemable convertible bonds.

In August 2001, December 2001 and January 2002, the Company issued and allotted
an aggregcate of 70,482,000 new Shares at price ranging from HKS$0.977 per Share to
HKS$1.91 per Share as a result of the exercise of the conversion rights of the
redeemable convertible bonds.

On 27 November 2001, the Company, Great Wall investment Group Limited and
Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited (an independent third party) entered
into a placing and subscription agreement in respect of the placing of 20,000,000
Shares beneficially owned by Great Wall Investment 1o independent investors at a
price of HKS$1.36 per Share. On completion of the placement, Great Wall Investment
subscribed for 20,000,000 new Shares at a price of HKS1.36 per Share and proceeds
of approximately HKS$27,200,000, before related expenses, were received by the
Company. The excess of the consideration received for Shares issued over their
nominal value, amounting to approximately HK$25,200,000, before related expenses,
was credited to the share premium account,

On 8 May 2002, the Company, Great Wall Investment and Guotai Junan Securities
(Hong Kong) Limited (an independent third party) entered into o placing and
subscription agreement in respect of the placing of 60,000,000 Shares beneficially
owned by Great Wall Investment to independent investors at o price of HKS$2.45 per
Share. On completion of the placement, Great Wall Investment subscribed for
60,000,000 new Shares at a price of HKS$2.45 per Share and proceeds of
approximately HK$147,000,000, before related expenses, were received by the
Company. The excess of the consideration received for Shares issued over their
nominal value, amounting to approximately HK$141,000,000, before related expenses,
wa@s credited to the share premium account.

During the year, 1,000,000 and 8,710,000 share options, which entitled the holders to
subscribe for Shares at price of HKS2.185 per Share and HK$2.3 per Share and at any
time up to 8 January 2012 and 23 April 2012, respectively. were exercised and
proceeds of approximately HK$22,218,000, before related expenses, were received
by the Company. The excess of the consideration received for Shares issued over
their nominal value, amounting to approximately HKS$21,247,000, before related
expenses, was credited to the share premium account.

CSFB is entitled to subscribe for up to 4,741,641 Shares at a subscription price of
HK$1.645 per Share pursuanf to the Subscripfion Right. The Subscripfion Right is
exercisable by CSFB at any time from 14 August 2001 to 14 August 2004, inclusive.,

On 16 January 2002, the Subscription Right was exercised by CSFB and resulted in the
issue of 4,740,000 Shares and proceeds of approximately HKS$7,800,000, before
related expenses, had been received by the Company. The excess of the
consideration received for Shares issued over their nominal value, amounting to
approximately HK$7,323,000, before related expenses, was credited to the share
premium account,
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SHARE CAPRITAL (Continued)
Share options

The Company operates a option scheme, further details of which are set out under the
heading “Share option” in the Report of the Directors.

Deftails of share options are as follows:

Exercise Granted  Exercised
Name of category Exercise price Balance at during during  Balance at
of participant Date of grant period  per share 1/7/2001 the year the year  30/6/2002
HKS

Directors 19/1/2001 19/1/2000 0.652 4,000,000 - - 4,000,000
to 18/1/2011

27/3/2001 27137200 0.7696 21,000,000 - - 21,000,000
to 26/3/2011

Employees 21/1/2002 9/1/2002 2185 -~ 28,000,000  (1.000,000) 27,000,000
to 8/1/2012

26/4/2002 24{4/2002 2.300 - 2,000,000  (2,000,000) -
to 23/4/2012

Entities providing 26/4/2002 2474/2002 2,300 - 4,330,000  (4.330,000) -
consultancy services to 23/412012

2/5/2002 247472002 2.300 - 2,380,000  (2,380,000) -

to 23/4/2012

25,000,000 36,710,000  (9,710,000) 52,000,000

Warrants

Pursuant to an ordinary resolufion passed in the exftraordinary general meeting of the
Company held on 29 April 2002, a bonus issue of warrants was distributed among the
shareholders of the Company whose names were in the Register of Members of the
Company on 29 April 2002 on the basis of one warrant for every five Shares then held by
them. Each warrant will entitle the holder thereof to subscribe for new Shares at an initial
subscription price of HKS2.62 per Share, subject to adjustment, at any time between the
date when dealings in the warrants on the Stock Exchange commence on 7 May 2002 and
6 May 2003 (both days inclusive). Any shares falling 1o be issued upon the exercise of the
subscription rights attaching to the bonus warrants will rank pari passu in all respects with
the fully paid shares in issue on the relevant subscription date.

FAR EAST PHARMACEUTICAL TECHNOLOGY COMPANY UMITED
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23.

RESERVES

Group

At 1/7/2000
Transfer from
retained profits
1o reserves
Revaluation surplus
- note 12
Minority interests
thergon - note 24(b)
Net profit for the year
Issue of shares
Share issue expenses
Capitatisation issue
of shares
Dividends - nofe 10

At 30/672001 and
/772901

Change in accounting
policy with respect
to dividends - note 10

At 30/6/2001 and
1/7/2001, as restated
Transfer from
retained profits
fo reserves
Net profit for the year
Exchange differences
arising from translation
of financial statements
of overseas operations
Minority interests
thereon - nofe 24(b)
Issue of shares
Share issue expenses
Expenses for redeemable
convertible bonds
Change in accounting
policy with respect
to dividends - note 10

At 30/6/2002

Representing:

The Company and
subsidiaries
Jointly- controlled enfity

Statutory Fixed
Statutory public assets Currency
Share surplus welfare revaluation translation Capital Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
Notfe (a) Note (b) Note (c)

HKS 000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000

- 5,557 7,554 4,314 - 11,022 49,374 97.821

- 10,048 - - - - (10,048) -

- - - 7.022 - - - 7.022
- - - (33) - - - (3%

- - - - - - 94,541 94,641
93,330 - - - - - - 93,330
(13,952) - - - - - - (13.952)
(23,900) - - - - - - (23.900)
- - - - - - (14,297) (14,297)
55,478 15,605 7,554 11,303 - 11,022 139,570 240,532
- - - - - - 14,297 14,297

55,478 15,605 7,554 11,303 - 11,022 153,867 254,829
- 12,082 - - - - (12,082) -

- - - - - - 134,739 134,739

- - - - 1,593 - - 1,593
- - - - Q1% - - (10)
281,268 - - - - - - 281,268
(2,364) - - - - - - (2,364)
(10,794) - - - - - - (10,794)
- - - - - - (14,297) (14,297)
323,588 27,687 7,554 11,303 1,583 11,022 262,227 644,964
323,588 27,687 7,554 11,303 1,683 11,022 262,358 645,095
- - - - - - (131) 3n)
323,588 27,687 7,554 11,303 1,583 11,022 262,227 644,964
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23. RESERVES (Continued) z
Group §
2002 2001 3
HK$’000 HKS'000 %
b
Representing: g
Reserves 622,062 240,532 =
Proposed dividend 22,902 14,297 2
644,964 254,829 2
Statutory Fixed
Statutory public assets  Currency
Share surplus welfare revaluation translation Capital Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
Note (@) Note (b) Note (¢)
HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS 000 HKS 000
Company
Arlsing on acquisition
of FEGG - - - - - 104,915 - 104,915
Net profit for the year - - - - - - 16,568 16,568
Issue of shares 93,330 - - - - - - 93,330
Share issue expenses (13,952) - - - - - - (13,952)
Capitalisation issue of
shares (23,900) - - - - - - (23,900}
Dividends - nofe 10 - - - - - - (14,297) (14,297)
At 30/6/2001 and
1/772001 55,478 - - - - 104,915 2,271 162,664
Change in accouniing
policy with respect
fo dividends - nofe 10 - - - - - - 14,297 14,297
At 30/6/2001 and
1/7/2001, as restated 55,478 - - - - 104,915 16,568 176,961
Net profit for the year - - - - - - 23,237 23,237
Issue of shares 281,268 - - - - - - 281,268
Share issue expenses (2,364) - - - - - - (2,364)
Expenses for redeemable
convertible bonds (10,794) - - - - - - 10.794)
Change in accounting
policy with respect
to dividends - note 10 - - - - - - (14,297) (14,297)
At 30/6/2002 323,588 - - - - 104,915 25,508 454,011
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23. RESERVES (Continued)

Company
2002 2001
HKS$'000 HKS ‘000
Representing:
Reserves 431,109 162,664
Proposed dividend 22,902 14,297
454,011 176,961

Notes:

()

()

©

Subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC are required 1o transfer 10% of their profif
affer tax calculated in accordance with the PRC accounting regulations to the statufory
surplus reserve until the reserve reaches 50% of their respective registered capital, upon which
any further appropriation will be at the directors’ recommendation. Such reserve may be used
tfo reduce any losses incurred by the subsidiaries or be capitalised as paid-up capital of the
subsidiaries.

Subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC are required to transfer 5% to 10% of their
profit after tax calculated in accordance with the PRC accounting regulations to the statutory
public welfare reserve. The use of this reserve is restricted to capital expenditure incurred for
staff welfare facilities. The statutory public welfare reserve is not available for distribution,
excep! upon liguidation of the subsidiaries.

The capital reserve of the Group represents the difference between the nominal value of the
share/registered capital of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group Reorganisation set
out in note 2(c), over the nominal vaiue of the share capital of the Company issued in
exchange therefor.

The capital reserve of the Company arose as a resulf of the same Group Reorganisation and
represents the excess of the then combined net assets of the subsidiaries acquired over the

nominal value of the share capital of the Company issued in exchange therefor,




NoTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS H &5”
30 June 2002 i

24. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

a) Reconciliation of profit before taxation and minority interests to net cash inflow
from operating activities

FAR EAST PHARMACEUTICAL TECHNOLOGY COMPANY UMITED

2002 2001
HK$’000 HKS'000

Profit before taxation and minority interests 174,957 108,729
Share of result of a jointly-controlied entity 131 -
Depreciation 14,587 4,836
Interest income (2,767) (2.459)
Interest expenses 520 236
Provision for doubtful debfs 1,063 -
Loss on written off of fixed assets 237 -
Provision for impairment of a jointly-controlled entity 534 - T
Amortisation of goodwill and intangible assets 3,210 155
(Increose)/decrease in inventories (35,703) 1,459
Increase in accounts receivable (99,418) (1,690)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, deposits and -

other receivable 14,302 (14,402)
Decrease in amounts due from a related company - 2,930
Increase in accounts payable 46,308 4,332
(Decrease)/increase in accrued liabilities, deposits

received and other payables (36) 11,446
Increase in amount due to related companies 4,127 2,960
Increase in amount due to directors 546 -
Net cash inflow from operating activities 122,598 118,532
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24. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (Continued)

b) Analysis of changes in financing during the year

FAR EAST PHARMACEUTICAL TECHNCOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED

Share capital Redeemable
and share convertible Minority
premium Bank loans bonds interests
HKS$ ‘000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000
At 1/7/2000 100 - - -
Arising on acquisition
of a subsidiary - 17,5614 - 1,299
Minority shareholder’s
share of:
Fixed assets revaluation
reserve - note 23 - - - 33
Net loss for the year - - - (133)
Net cash inflow/(outflow)
from financing 89,778 17.514) - -
At 30/6/2001 and 1/7/2001 89,878 - - 1,199
Mincrity shareholder’s
share of:
Currency translation
reserve - note 23 ’ - - - 10
Net profit for the year - - - 3,823
Net cash inflow from financing 191,057 - 93,546 -
Conversion of redeemable
convertible bonds 93,546 - (93.546) -

At 30/6/2002 374,481 - - 5,032
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24. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASHKE FLOW STATEMENT (Continued) %
c) Purchase of a subsidiary o
g
2002 2001 %
HK$’000 HKS$ 000 2
3
Net assets acquired: %
Fixed assets - 8,990 S
Intangible asset - 18,164 %
Inventories - 187 %
Accounts receivable - 3.037 &
Prepayment, deposits and other receivables - 54 -
Cash and obank balances - 1
Accounts payable - (2,087)
Accrued liabilities, deposits received and
other payables - (2,158)
Bank loans - (17.514)
Minority interests - (1.299)
- 7,369
Goodwill on acquisition - 2,319
- 9,688
Satisfied by:
Cash consideration - 2,688

Analysis of net outflow of cash and cash equivalent in respect of the purchase of a

subsidiary
2002 2001
HK$’000 HKS’000
Cash consideration - 3,688
Cash and bank balances acquired - )

- 9,687
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25.

26.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the vear, the Group entered intc the following transactions with related

companies;

2002 2001
Notes HK$’'000 HKS 000

Advertising expenses paid 0] 16,520 7,302

Purchases of packing materials an 75,470 49,019

Rental expenses paid (i) 1,351 1,340

Notes:

) Advertising expenses paid to BEZBES ER AT, a related company beneficially owned by
Mr. Cal Chong Zhen, a director of the Company, were charged based on the actual costs
incurred plus a mark-up of 10%. There is no balance due to BEEBE S ER 27 amounted 1o
HKSNil at 30 June 2002, (2001: Due to HK$664,000)

(i) The directors consider that the purchases of packing materials from BMERKEIRIER 2 F, o
related company beneficially owned by Mr. Chen Ching Ken, a director of the Company, were
made on similar terms obtcined from other third party suppliers of the Group and were
carried out in the ordinary course of business of the Group. The balance due to BMEEEIRIH
iR & Flamounted to approximately HK$9,740,000 at 30 June 2002. (2001. approximately
HK$4,903,000)

iy  The rental expenses were paid fo BREZHBEEFR 2 A (the "Landlord”), a related company
beneficially owned by Mr. Cai Chong Zhen. The rental was determined between the Landlord
and the Group with reference to the prevailing market conditions.

COMMITMENTS

As at 30 June 2002, the Group had the following commitments:

(@

(©)

The Group had no material capital commitments (2001: capital commitments of
approximately HK$§12,339,000 in respect of erecting a pharmaceutical
manufacturing plant and the purchase of related equipment and machinery).

Future aggregate minimum lease payments under operating leases in respect of
land and buildings ¢s follows:

2002 2001

HK$'000 HKS 000

Within one year 2,230 1,510
In the second to fifth year inclusive 3,198 3,351

5,428 4,861
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27.

28.

30 June 2002

POST BALANGCE SHEET EVENTS

Pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement dated 15 July 2002, the Group acguired 10
shares of USS1 each in Boomtown Ventures Limited ("Boomtown”), representing 100% of the
issued share capital of Boomtown at a consideration of HK$30 million, Through its interest in
Boomtown, the Group indirectly holds 100% interest in Xiamen Talent Biotech Company
Limited, which is mainly engaged in the production of exfernal diagnosis test medical
samples, research on bio-medical samples, production and technology services and
production of bio-medical products.

Pursuant to three sale and purchase agreements dated 20 August 2002, the Group
acguired 95.8% equity interest in Shanghai Penta Ocean Medical and Heaith Care Food
Company Limited ("Penta Ocean”), at a consideration of RMB23,950,000. Penta Ocean is
mainly engaged in the manufacture of tonic drink in the PRC.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain 2001 comparative figures have been reclassified 1o conform 1o the current year’s
presentation.

FAR EAST PHARMACEUTICAL TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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z NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that an Annual General Meeting of Far East Pharmaceutical Technology
é Company Limited (the “Company”) will be held at Prince lll, 3/F. The Marco Polo Prince Hotel,
§ Harbour City, 23 Canton Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong on Wednesday, 18 December 2002 at 3:00
3 p.m. for the following purposes:

@]

=

é 1 To receive and consider the audited consolidated financial statements and the reports of
S the directors and of the auditors for the year ended 30 June 2002;

£

2 2. To declare a finai dividend:

2

% 3. To re-elect directors of the Company and to authorize the Board of Directors to fix
§ directors’ remuneration;

4, To appoint Charles Chan, Ip & Fung CPA Limited as cuditors and to authorize the Board of
Directors to fix auditors’ remuneration:

5. To consider as special business and, if thought fit, pass with or without amendments, the
following resolution as an ordinary resolution:

“THAT

(a) the exercise by the directors of the Company during the Relevant Period of all the
powers of the Company to purchase its own shares, and warrants subject fo and in
accordance with the applicable laws, be and Is hereby generally and
unconditionally approved;

(o) the total nominal amount of shares to be purchased by the Company pursuant to
the approval in paragraph (o) above shall not exceed 10% of the total nominal
amount of the share capital of the Company in issue on the date of passing of this
resolution and the subscription rights attached to the warrants of the Company 1o be
purchased pursuant tfo such approval shall not exceed 10% of the total subscription
rights aftached to the warrants outstanding on the date of passing of this resofution,
and the said approval shall be limited accordingly, and

(c) for the purpose of this resolution, "Relevant Period” means the period from the
passing of this resolution until whichever is the earliest of:

0] the conclusion of the next annual general meefing of the Company;
{n the revocation or variation of the authority given under this resolution by

ordinary resolufion passed by the Company’s shareholders in general
meetings; and

(i) the expiration of the period within which the next annual general meeting of
the Company is required by the articles of associafion of the Company or any
applicable laws to be held.”;
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To consider as special business and, if thought fit, pass with or without amendments, the
following resolution as an ordinary resolution:

“THAT

(a) the exercise by the directors of the Company (the "Directors”) during the Relevant
Period of all the powers of the Company to issue, allot and deal with additional
shares of the Company and to make or grant offers, agreements and options which
would or might require shares to be allotted, issued or dealt with during or after the
end of the Relevant Period in addition to any shares of the Company which may be
issued on the exercise of the subscription rights attaching to the warrants issued by
the Company, be and is hereby generally and unconditionally approved, provided
that, otherwise than pursuant to () a rights issue where shares are offered to
shareholders of the Company on the register on a fixed record date set by the
Directors in proportion to their then holdings of shares (subject to such exclusions or
other arrangements as the Directors may deem necessary or expedient in relation to
fractional entitlements or having regard to any restrictions or obligations under the
laws of, or the requirements of any recognized regulatory body or any stock
exchange in any ferritory outside Hong Kong) or (ii) any option scheme or similar
arrangement for the time being adopted for the grant or issue tc officers and/or
employees of the Company and/or any of ifs subsidiaries and/or any eligible grantee
pursuant to the scheme of shares or rights to acquire shares of the Company, or (jii)
any scrip dividend scheme or similar arrangement providing for the allotment of
shares in lieu of the whole or part of a dividend on shares of the Company in
accordance with the arficles of association of the Company, the total nominal
amount of additional shares to be issued, allotted, dealt with or agreed conditionally
or unconditfionally to be issued, allotted or dealt with shall not in fotal exceed 20% of
the total nominal amount of the share capital of the Company in issue on the date
of this resolution and the said approval shall be limited accordingly, and

(b) for the purpose of this resolution, "Relevant Period” means the period from the
passing of this resolution unftil whichever is the earliest of:

O] the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company;
(i the revocation or variation of the authority given under this resolution by

ordinary resolution passed by the Company’s shareholders in general
meetings; and

(i)  the expiration of the period within which the next annual general meeting of
the Company is required by the articles of association of the Company or any
applicable laws to be held.”; and

FAR EAST PHARMACEUTICAL TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED
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FAR EAST PHARMACEUTICAL TECHNOLOGY COMPANY LIMITED

Hong

Notes:

(@

®)

©

(D

To consider as special business and, if thought fif, pass with or without amendments, the
following resolution as an ordinary resolution:

“THAT the general mandate granted to the directors of the Company (the "Directors”)
pursuant to resolution no. 6 above and for the time being in force to exercise the powers of
the Company to allot shares and to make or grant offers, agreements and options which
might require the exercise of such powers be and is hereby extended by the total nominal
amount of shares in the capital of the Company repurchased by the Company pursuant to
the exercise by the Directors of the powers of the Company to purchase such shares since
the granting of such general mandate referred to in the above resolution no. 5 provided
that such amount shall not exceed 10% of the tfotal nominal amount of the share capital of
the Company in issue on the date of passing of this resolution.”.

By Order of the Board
Leung Po Hon
Secretary

Kong, 21 October, 2002

The Register of Meﬁwbers of the Company will be closed from Friday, 13 December 2002 to Wednesday,
18 December 2002 (both days inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares of the Company
will be registered. In order to qualify for entitlement to the proposed final dividend for the year ended
30 June 2002 and for attending the Annual General Meeting, all transfers of shares of the Company
accompanied by the relevant share certificates and the appropriate transfer forms must be lodged
with the Company’s Share Registrar in Hong Kong, Tengis Limited, at 4/F Hutchison House, 10 Harcourt
Road, Central, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:00 p.m. on Thursday, 12 December 2002.

A shareholder of the Company, who is the holder of two or more shares of the Company, entitied to
attend and vote af the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint more than one proxy to attend
and vote on his behalf. A proxy need not be a shareholder of the Company. If more than one proxy is
so appointed, the appointment shall specify the number and class of shares in respect of which each
such proxy is so appointed.

The instrument appointing a proxy and the power of attorney or other authority, if any, under which it is
signed, or a certified copy of such power or authority, must be lodged with the Company’s Share
Registrar in Hong Kong, Tengis Limited, at 4/F Hutchison House, 10 Harcourt Road, Cenfral, Hong Kong
not less than 48 hours before the time fixed for holding the Meeting.

A circular setting out further information regarding the above resoluticns nos. & to 7 will be
despatched to shareholders of the Company shortly.
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